
 
 

PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL 
          FORMAL MEETING                           

     September 18, 2018 
            6:00 P.M. 

     47th Session of the 10th Council 
 

It is this Council’s mission “To serve the citizens of Pontiac by committing to help provide an enhanced quality of life 
for its residents, fostering the vision of a family-friendly community that is a great place to live, work and play.” 

 
 

Call to order 
 
Invocation 
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Roll Call 
 
Authorization to Excuse Councilmembers   
 
Amendments to and Approval of the Agenda 
 
Approval of the Minutes 
 

1. Journal of September 11, 2018. 
 
Subcommittee Reports (as Needed)  
 
Special Presentation – OLHSA 
 
Verbal Report - Status Update Regarding Recount Procedure for Proposal 1- Election Specialist Annette Wesley  
 
Verbal Report - Status Update Regarding Implementation of Proposal 1- City Attorney 
 
Recognition of Elected Officials 
 
Agenda Address 
 
Review Agenda Items for City Council Consideration 
 

2. Resolution to create MIDC Grant Fund and approve budget amendment for the fiscal year 2018-2019. 
3. Resolution to authorize Mayor to purchase five vehicles (Chevrolet Cruze) to administer the Code 

Enforcement Division, from Berger Chevrolet. (defer from 8/14/18) 
4. Request to schedule a Public Hearing on September 25, 2018, to consider the formal IFT application for 

Peninsula Plastics 1200 Auburn Rd, Pontiac, Michigan. 
5. Consider the 2nd Reading of an Ordinance to establish PILOT for the Hamilton, 5 Carter Street.  
6. Resolution to approve the Municipal Services Agreement and Development Agreement between the 

Hamilton Limited Divided Housing Association Limited Partnership and the City of Pontiac and authorize 
the Mayor to execute agreements on behalf of the City. 



7. Introduction of an Ordinance to establish a PILOT for Winston Common, 69 Douglas, Pontiac, MI. 
8. Resolution recommended by the Planning Commission for a Zoning Map Amendment (ZMA 18-06) request 

for Pin 64-14-19-351-024 to amend the current zoning from Mixed Use District (MUD) zoning to M-1 Light 
Manufacturing District. 

 
Public Comment 
 
Mayor, City Clerk, City Attorney and City Council Closing Comments 
 
Adjournment 



September 11, 2018 
 
 

1 
 
 
 
 
 

Official Proceedings 
Pontiac City Council  

   46th  Session of the Tenth Council 
 
A Study Session of the City Council of Pontiac, Michigan was called to order in City Hall, Tuesday 
September 11, 2018 at 6:00 P.M. by Councilwoman Patrice Waterman.               
 
Call to Order at 6:02 p.m.  
 
Roll Call  
 
Council President Kermit Williams arrived at 6:02 during roll call.  
  
Members Present: Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams and Woodward   
Members Absent: Randy Carter.  
Mayor Waterman was present. 
Clerk announced a quorum. 
 
Point of Privilege for Fed-Ex Update  
 
18-336  Excuse Councilperson Randy Carter for personal reasons.   Moved by Councilperson 
Pietila and second by Councilperson Woodward. 
 
  Ayes: Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams and Woodward   
  No: None  
  Motion Carried.  
 
18-337  Approval of the Agenda. Moved by Councilperson Taylor-Burks and second by 
Councilperson Woodward. 
 
  Ayes: Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams, Woodward and Miller 
  No: None  
  Motion Carried. 
 
18-338  Journal of September 4, 2018. Moved by Councilperson Woodward and second by 
Councilperson Waterman.  
 
  Ayes: Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams, Woodward and Miller 
  No: None 
  Abstain: Pietila 
  Motion Carried. 
 
18-339  Resolution to go into Closed Session to discuss cases for Ottawa Towers vs. the City 
of Pontiac and CPREA vs. the City of Pontiac. Moved by Councilperson Woodward and second by 
Councilperson Waterman.  
 
Whereas, Section 8 (e), MCL 15.268, permits a public body “[to] consult with its attorney 
regarding trial or settlement strategy in connection with specific pending litigation, but only if an 



September 11, 2018 
 
 

2 
 
 
 
 
 

open meeting would have detrimental financial effect on the litigation or settlement position of 
the public body”: and,  
Whereas, the Pontiac City Council believes that an open meeting would have a detrimental 
financial effect on the litigating or settlement position of the City. 
Therefore, Be It Resolved that the Pontiac City Council recesses into closed session for the 
purpose of consulting with its attorney regarding settlement strategy in the litigation cases for: 
 

1. Ottawa Towers, et. al. vs. City of Pontiac, et. al., Oakland County Circuit Court, Case 
No. 14-139761-CC and 

2.  CPREA vs. City of Pontiac, et. al. U.S. District Court Eastern District of Michigan, Case 
No. 12-CV-12830.  

Ayes: Waterman, Williams, Woodward, Miller, Pietila and Taylor-Burks 
No: None 
Resolution Passed. 

 
Council convened out of closed Session at 6: 30 p.m. 
 
Council President Kermit Williams left meeting at 6:30 p.m. 
 
Councilwoman Patrice Waterman preceded over the meeting. 
 
Deputy Mayor Report or Departmental Head Report – Mayor Waterman and DPW Director John Balint. 
 
Point of Privilege for State Representative Tim Greimel  
 
Eleven (11) individuals addressed the body during public comment. 
 
Moment of Silence for “911” 
 
Councilman Don Woodward left meeting at 7:30 p.m. 
 
18-340  Defer for one week the authorization for Mayor to purchase 5 vehicles to administer 
the Code Enforcement Division from Berger Chevrolet. Moved by Councilperson Taylor-Burks and 
second by Councilperson Miller. 
 
  Ayes:  Miller, Taylor-Burks and Waterman 
  No: Pietila  
  Motion Carried. 
 
18-341  Suspend the Rules. Moved by Councilperson Taylor-Burks and second by 
Councilperson Pietila.  
 
  Ayes: Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks and Waterman 
  No: None 
  Motion Carried. 
 



September 11, 2018 
 
 

3 
 
 
 
 
 

18-342  Approval of the Emergency Ordinance to provide for a limited increase in pension 
payments for certain members of the City of Pontiac Police and Fire Retirement System. Moved by 
Councilperson Pietila and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

 
Ordinance No. 2357 

 
An ordinance to provide for a limited increase in pension payments for certain members of the City 
of Pontiac Police and Fire Retirement System.  
 
Whereas, the temporary increase to certain members (pre 1996 retirees) of the PFRS pension system as 
mandated by Ordinance 2347 will expire on August 31, 2018; and, 
 
Whereas, the City Council desires that this temporary increase continues for at most one more year; and,  
 
Whereas, in order for this temporary increase to continue, the City Council must pass the emergency 
ordinance to authorize such a temporary increase via amendment of the section 92-122.2 of the PFRS 
Ordinance, and  
 
Whereas, such ordinance, if approved, will take effect from September 1, 2018 and expire on August 31, 
2019, or with the commencement of the health insurance benefit, whichever comes first, and, 
 
Whereas, the Pontiac City Council considers this an emergency. 
 
The City of Pontiac ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Amendments. 
 
The Code of Ordinances shall be amended to read as follows: 
 

a.  Section 92-122.2 shall be amended to add the following language:  
Temporary Pension Increase 

"All persons who retired before August 22, 1996, and who are receiving 
retirement benefits as of September 1, 2018 and who enter pay status through 
August 1, 2019, shall be entitled to receive an increase in their monthly 
allowance of four hundred dollars ($400.00) per month beginning September 1, 
2018 through August 31, 2019.  Should the City of Pontiac, as the result of 
litigation or settlement thereto, will provide retiree health insurance to the group 
or a compensation that is understood as an alternative healthcare benefit, the 
monthly allowance of $400 per month ends. 

 
Section 2. Severability. 
 
If any section, or provision of this Ordinance shall be declared to be unconstitutional, void, illegal, or 
ineffective by any Court of competent jurisdiction, such section, clause or provision declared to be 
unconstitutional, void or illegal shall thereby cease to be a part of this Ordinance, but the remainder of the 
Ordinance shall stand and be in full force and effect. 
 
Section 3. Repealer. 
 



September 11, 2018 
 
 

4 
 
 
 
 
 

All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed only to the extent 
necessary to give this Ordinance full force and effect. 
 
Section 4.  Publication. 
The Clerk shall publish this Ordinance in a newspaper of general circulation. 

Section 5.  Emergency Declaration and Effective Date. 
This Ordinance is declared an emergency to allow the pension recipients to collect the increase authorized 
in this Ordinance on the date identified in this Ordinance and shall be effective immediately upon 
adoption by the City Council.  
 
  Ayes: Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks and Waterman 
  No: None 
  Ordinance Passed. 
 
18-343  Suspend the Rules. Moved by Councilperson Taylor-Burks and second by 
Councilperson Pietila.  
 
  Ayes: Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks and Waterman 
  No: None 
  Motion Carried. 
 
18-344  Resolution to authorize Mayor to enter into a contract in the amount of $90,260.00 
with Nichols Heating and Cooling for Boiler Replacements for Ottawa Park Cemetery, fires Station 
#6 and Fire Station #9. Moved by Councilperson Taylor-Burks and second by Councilperson Pietila. 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac advertised and received responses to a request for proposals for Boiler 
Replacements on August 20, 2018 and publically opened bids; and, 
WHEREAS, a bid tabulation was prepared and reviewed, and, 
WHEREAS, the most responsible and qualified bidder is being recommended for the contract; and, 
WHEREAS, the contract will be granted to Nichols Heating and Cooling.  The amount of $ 90,260.00 is 
the total bid for any and all work performed, by the contractor, under this agreement; 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Pontiac City Council authorize the Mayor or Deputy 
Mayor to enter into a contract with; Nichols Heating and Cooling for Boiler Replacements in the amount 
of $90,260.00 as budgeted. 
 
  Ayes: Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman and Miller 
  No: None 
  Resolution Passed. 
 
18-345  Defer for one week the introduction of an Ordinance to establish a PILOT for 
Winston Common, 69 Douglas, Pontiac, MI. Moved by Councilperson Taylor-Burks and second by 
Councilperson Pietila. 
 
  Ayes: Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Miller and Pietila 
  No: None 
  Motion Carried. 
 
 
 



September 11, 2018 
 
 

5 
 
 
 
 
 

Councilwoman Patrice Waterman adjourned the meeting at 7:55 p.m. 
 

 
______________________________ 

                                                                           SHEILA R. GRANDISON 
          ACTING CITY CLERK 



FINANCE SUBCOMMITTEE NOTES 

September 11, 2018 

In attendance: 
Council members: Chair Patrice Waterman, President Kermit Williams and Gloria Miller 
Mayor: Deirdre Waterman 
Deputy Mayor: Jane Bais-DiSessa 
Economic Development Director: Rachel Loughrin 
Butzel Long: Attorney Jim Townsend 
General Counsel Joshua Markham 
Keith Fryman 
Plante Moran: Danielle Kelley 

Start time: 4:00 pm 
AGENDA 

I. New Business 

A. 1000 Vanguard Drive 
Members of the Fed-Ex project appeared and explained that they listened to the concerns of the 
residents of Stonegate and as a consequence, Fed- Ex is putting forth a new proposal which includes 
benefits to the community. Setzer Properties is proposing the following: 

1. Road Improvements - Setzer will provide $750,000 to an escrow account for 
upgrades to the neighborhood's road system. 

2. New Neighborhood Park -Pontiac Community Investment, LLC will provide 
$150,000 to an escrow account for the neighborhood park planned for the north 
end of the Stonegate Boulevard. 

3. Stormwater Improvements and a Cleaner Pond- Setzer will pay for cleanup 
and repair of the pond and correct inadequate pipe sizes to ensure that the pond 
functions correctly. 

4. Safer More Secure Community - Having a 24-hour secured and monitored 
facility north of Stonegate will deter illegal dumping and other crime and 
contribute to a safer neighborhood. 

• A sound study has been conducted by a tliird-party which recommended raising berm height 
as tl1e preferred means of reducing neighborhood noise and tl1e updated plans have incorporated 
berms matching the recommendations. 
• The sound experienced by tl1e residents at tl1e bottom of the berm will be at or below 
ordinance requirements. 
• Berms will deaden tl1e railyard noise and will reduce sight lines into the facility. 

Emissions: 
•Current tmck fleet meets all EPA emissions requirements. 
• Tmcks are equipped with auto-shutoffs to turn engines off after two minutes of idling. 
• Fleet is being replaced with compressed natural gas (CNG) for city routes. 
e Trees and plants will be provided on and around the property on top of the new and existing berms 
which will provide airborne pollutant removal and additional sight line barrier. 

1 



Planned Underground Storage Tanks are Safe: 
• The Underground Storage Tanks (USTs) meet all Federal and State spill prevention and 
constmction standards. 
• The UST's are fiberglass double wall tanks with saline solution filling the space between the walls. 

• On Friday, September 14, 2018 there will be a meeting with the Stonegate condominium association 
at 6:30 pm to discuss the new proposal with the residents. 

B. 140 Saginaw 
• A developer has expressed an interest in the location and proposed a concept that they would like 
to further discuss. 
• TI1e developer will be contacted to determine the status of the project. 

C. Treasury Department 
• There was discussion regarding renovations to the department. 
• Approximately, $40,000 was allocated in the budget for improvements. 

D, Review of July 2018 Financial Activities: 
- The total investment in all funds for the City as of?-31-2018 was $ 54,463,411.15. The general fund portion 
is $16,155,711.47. The net decreasein the balance compared to the previous month is a result of the collection 
of the payment to Waterford Township for Fire Services of approximately $1.7 million. This was offset by the 
collection of property taxes of $436,226.06 and repayment of borrowed funds from the district court fund of 
$400,000. 

- Based on the latest report on the general fund balance as of 6-30-2017, the accumulated amount is $17.073 
million dollars. The current balance sheet as of 6/30/2018 is reporting a decrease of fund balance $424,000, 
resnlting in a fund balance of $16.6 million. Of this fund balance, $3.2 million is committed, leaving a reported 
unassigned fund balance of $13.4 million. This balance may change if rollover amendments from the previous 
fiscal year are adopted, as they will need to be classified as assigned. Additionally, this balance will continue to 
fluctuate slightly as final audit adjustments are made for the year-end audit, which begins 9/24/18. 

- TI1e Income Tax Collections current fiscal year vs prior will continue to change due to year- end accounting 
entries for income tax related to June 2018 which was received from July 1, 2018 to August 31, 2018 and which 
was approximately $21,000 in the prior year. 

- Property tax collections for tl1e month of July 2018 shows a total amount of City millages collected as 
$3,879,128.06 vs $12,682,049.11 billed, which is approximately 30%. 

-Expenditures for tl,c first month are tracking within the budget. A quarterly detail review of actual expenditures 
vs the budget will be performed in October 2018. 

-Final budget document for 6-30-18 was posted to the City website. The City also applied for the distinguished 
budget award with GFOA. 

-The annual full audit by Rehmann will begin September 24, 2018 as the Auditors started tl1e preliminary work 
in July. 

Adjourned: 5:00 p.m. 

2 



~ \~~ MEMORANDUM 
ICHIGI-~ City of Pontiac 

DATE: 9/13/2018 

Controller's Office 
47450 Woodward Avenue 
Pontiac, Michigan 48342 

Telephone: (248) 758-3118 
Fax: (248) 758-3197 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Danielle Kelley, Plante & Moran - Controller's Office 

THROUGH: Jane Bais DiSessa - Deputy Mayor 

SUBJECT: MIDC Grant Fund creation and budget amendment 

~l 

C1 

--1 
;::,, 
c:, 
C) 

-1 
--:: 
0 ,-
rn 
::0 
;::,;: 

,_, 
= 
(/J ;,,"U 
fT1 Pl -u 

0 
,i::- rn 
-0 < 
:x rr, 
N 0 .. 
0 
(J1 

As discussed at the 8/14/2018 Finance Subcommittee meeting, the City has been awarded $795,041 
with a local share of $17,635 from the Michigan Indigent Defense Council (MIDC) to bring the system's 
delivery of indigent criminal defense services into compliance with minimum standards established by 
the MIDC. A requirement for this grant is to establish a separate fund for recording grant related 
revenues and expenditures. The budget that was adopted by City Council on 6/8/2018 established the 
revenue and appropriations for the MIDC grant in the District Court Fund (276). Therefore, a budget 
amendment is required to be approved by City Council in order to transfer the MIDC fund grant 
revenues and related expenditures from the District Court fund and establish a budget for a newly 
created MIDC Grant fund. The fund is required by the grant to be created and have an established 
budget by October 1, 2018. 

Attached to this memo and resolution is exhibit A, which details the amendment by function. 

At this time we are seeking formal approval from the City Council for this budget amendment. If Council 
agrees, please pass the following resolution: 

Whereas, the City of Pontiac timely approved the 2018-2019 budget on June 8, 2018 and; 

Whereas, the District Court budget contained a corresponding revenue and appropriation for the 
Michigan Indigent Defense Council (MIDC} Grant of $876,540 and $894,175, respectively and; 

Whereas, the District Court was awarded an M/DC grant of $795,041 with a local shore of $17,635 and; 

Whereas, the M/DC grant requires that a separate MIDC grant Jund be established. Therefore, there is a 
need to reduce the District Court's budgeted other revenue by $795,041, reduce the District Court's 
general government appropriations by $812,676, and increase the District Court's transfers out and 



other uses appropriations by $17,635 and reallocate these revenues and appropriations to a new M/DC 
grant fund and establish a budget of $795,041 of state grant revenue, $17,635 of transfers In and other 
uses revenue, and $812,676 In general government appropriations. 

Whereas, the Mayor Is proposing to the City Council to decrease the revenues and appropriations for the 
current fiscal year 2018-2019 for the District Court Fund and Increase the revenues and appropriations 
for a new MIDC grant Jund In amounts described above as necessary to comply with the requirements of 
this grant and; 

Whereas the decreased revenue wlll not cause the Jund balance In the District Court Fund to go below 
the policy mandated thresholds; and, 

Now therefore, be It resolved, that the City Council of the City of Pontiac approves the budget 
amendment for the fiscal year 2018-2019 as requested by the Mayor and detailed In the attachment 
labeled exhibit A. 



EXHIBIT A 
District Court • 276 

ESTIMATED REVENUES 
Charges for Seivlces 
State Grants 
Other Revenue 
Fines and Forfeits 
Interest and Rents 
Transfers In and Other Uses 

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 

APPROPRIATIONS 
General Government 

Transfers Out and Other Uses 
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 

District Court 
NET REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 
Estimated Beginning Fund Balance 

Estimated Ending Fund Balance 

MIDC Grant• 260 

ESTIMATED REVENUES 
State Grants 
Transfers In and Other Uses 

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 

APPROPRIATIONS 

MIOCGrant 

General Government 
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 

NET REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 
Estimated Beginning Fund Balance 

Estimated Ending Fund Balance 

2018-2019 
Original Budget 

673,795 
187,639 
876,540 

1,083,635 
1,500 

1,374,555 
4,197,664 

4,168,343 
15,000 

4,183,343 

14,321 

13,325 
27,646 

2018-2019 
Original Budget 

2018-2019 
Proposed Amendment Amended Budget 

Proposed Amendment 

673,795 
187,639 

(795,041) 81,499 
1,083,635 

1,500 
1,374,555 

{795,041) 3,402,623 

{812,676) 
17,635 

(795,041) 

13,325 
13,325 

795,041 
17,635 

812,676 

812,676 
812,676 

3,355,667 
32,635 

3,388,302 

14,321 
13,325 
27,646 

2018-2019 
Amended Budget 

795,041 
17,635 

812,676 

812,676 
812,676 



4,m~~ OFl>o-li,', 

{,~ z ~ 
% # 

~'cwio•" 

CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICl/\l MEMOH/\NIJUM 

Executive Branch 

TO: 
FROM: 
CC: 
DATE: 
RE: 

Honorable City Council President and City Council Members 
Jane Bais-DiSessa, Deputy Mayor 
Mayor Deirdre Waterman, John Balint, Acting DPW Director 
August 31, 2018 
Code Enforcement Officer Vehicle Purchase - Options 

As a follow-up to Council's code enforcement vehicle discussion at last week's Study Session, the following 
options are presented for your consideration 

Option 1 (Original Proposal): -, ·, , .. ~ Quanlty & Type Individual C = 
Of Vehicle Price wLO11tions Total Cost -'- = --: V, :;:o 
[5] Cruze: SlS,986 S79.930 J:> r'1 

fT1 " Grand Total: $79,930 CJ 
I 0 

C -.J fT1 
~{ 

" < Option 2: -< :x fT1 
Quanity & Type Individual 0 0 r .. 
Of Vehicle Price wLO11tions Total Cost r'1 ,I:"" ::0 
[1] Silverado: $30,235 $30,235 :;r.: CX) 

[4] Cruze: SlS,986 S63,944 
Grand Total: $94,179 [$4,179 over Budget] 

Option 3: 
Quanlty & Type Individual 
Of Vehicle Price wLO11tions Total Cost 
[2] Silverado: $30,235 $60,470 
[3] Cruze: SlS,986 S47,958 
Grand Total: $108,428 over Budget] 

The following resolution is proposed (Note: Type of vehicles and cost to be selected at the City Council 

meeting): 

WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac has reviewed pricing provided by Oakland County MiDeal and determined 
the vehicles required to perform upcoming work; and 

WHEREAS, City staff has reviewed the vehicles and equipment and determined the listed items to be 
adequate for the upcoming work, and; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Pontiac City Council authorizes the Mayor to purchase five 
vehicles ( __ Chevrolet Cruze and __ Silverado) for a total cost of$. ______ _,· in order to 
administer the Code Enforcement Division, from Berger Chevrolet. 



MODEL: DEALER INFORMATION 

Body Style: 1SBLSAUTO 

NOTE: Modal Should lndude STANDARD PACKAGING, unless 
otherwis:e Indicated below. 

Standard Eauioment Plus 

PLUS TITLE FEE 

/..Jame: Berger Chevrolet 

Address 1: 2525 28th Street SE 

Address 2: Grand Rapids Ml 49512 

Contact Bob Evans 
Telephone: 616-949-5200 

MINUS TOTAL $ . 
STANDARD COST SUBTOTAL $ 

POSSIBLE OPTIONS: 
ZLQ LS Fleet Convenience Packaae $ 
R9Y Flee! Maintenance Credi! $ (57.00 

TOTAL OPTIONS 
TOTALCOST $ 

AUTI-!ORIZED NAME:(Prinl} Robert Evans 

AumoRIZED SIGNAllJRE: I DATE: 

COST 

15,567.00 

419.00 

10/10/2017 

f 
I 
I 



CODE ENFORCEMENT VEHICLE(S) 

VEHICLE OPTIONS 

Item. Description Quantity Cost with Grand Total 
Options 

1 2018 Chevrolet Silverado Special Service · 5 $30,235.00 $151,175.00 
CK 15743, 4WD Standard Box Crew Cab 
(Standard Equipment Plus) 

2 2018 Chevrolet Colorado 4WD 12 M43 5 $26,013.00 $130,065.00 
Extended Bed (Standard Equipment Plus) 

3 2018 Chevrolet Cruze 5 $15,986.00 $79,930.00 
(LS Fleet Convenience Package) 



MODEL: 2018 CHEVROLET·SJLVERADO:SPECl/i.L·· 
DEALER INFORMATION SERvicEi::1<1si ,("<"·•·,,, · -"!.·itg.,,-:c·':<' . .. . . . .3 :,, . . •. ·, ' .· -·.·. , ·•;·,•, 

Body Style: , 4WD STANDARD BOX CREW CAB Name: Berger Chevrolet 
NOTE: Model Should Include STANDARD PACKAGING, unless otherwise Address 1: 2525 28th Street SE 
Indicated below. 

Address 2: Grand Rapids Ml 49512 

Contact: Bob Evans 
Telephone: 616-949-5200 

Standard Equipment Plus COST 
5T5 Front Cloth Vinyl Rear Seats 

PLUS TITLE FEE 
MINUS TOTAL $ -

STANDARD COST SUBTOTAL $ 27,324.00 
POSSIBLE OPTLONS: I / 

PCR WT Fleet Convenience Package $ 327.00 
C49 Rear Window Defogner ' $ 201.00 
B30 Carpet Floor $ 88.00 
6E2 Common Kev Code $ 25,00 
5H1 Two Additional Keys I ..,. $ 45,00 
9S1 Driver and Passenger Individual Vinyl Seats N/C 
AZ3 40/20/40 Spltt Bench Seat $ 393.00 
9L7 Upfitter SWitches . $ 115.00 
CGN Spray on Bed Liner $ 436.00 
CTD Cargo Tie Downs •'- $ 53.00 
AKO Glass Deen Tinted ! $ 181 .OD 
UF2 LED Linhting Cargo· Box $ 110.00 

DPN Heated ·Power Ad;ustable Vertical Camper Mirrors (req. PCR) $ 313.00 
9G3 Suspension Package lreq. GB0 & RC3) $ 359.00 
R9Y Fleet Maintenance Credit $ (74.00) 
GB0 Locking Rear Axle $ 354.00 
FHS E85 Flex Fuel Capable $ 88.00 
282 Trailering Package $ 354.00 
JL1 Trailer brake controller $ 249.00 
NQH Active Transfer case $ 186.00 
NZZ Underbody Shield I/ $ 93,00 
6J3 Wiring, grille lamps and siren speakers $ 166.00 
6J4 Wiring, horn and siren circuit $ 69.00 

Headlamps, daytime running lamps & automatic headlamp 
9GB control delete ' $ 44.00 
7X6 Spottamp, left-handed . . $ 480,00 
7X7 Spottamps, left and right-hand ,7 $ 946.00 
RC3 Tires, P265R0R17 all-terrain, blackwall • $ 176.00 
RIB Tires, P265/65RB MIT blackwall NIA 
PZX Wheels, 18" x 8.5" aluminum with hlah-oolished finish $ 402.00 

TOTAL OPTIONS 
TOTAL COST $ -

AUTHORIZED NAME: {Print) Robert Evans 

AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE: I DATE: I 10/10/2017 



MODEL: 
2018 CHEVROLET COLORADO 4WD 

DEALER INFORMATION 
12M53 

Body Style: WORK TRUCK/ EXT CAB Name: Berger Chevrolet 

NOTE: Model Should Include STANDARD PACKAGING, unless otherwise Address 1: 2525 28th Street SE 
indicated below. 

Address 2: Grand Rapids Ml 49512 

Contact: Bob Evans 

Telephone: 616-949-5200 

Standard Equipment Plus COST 
2WT 
B38 Vinyl Floor 
MYB Automatic transmission 

2.5L 4 cylinder 

. PLUS TITLE FEE 
MINUS TOTAL $ - $25,148.00 

STANDARD COST SUBTOTAL 
POSSIBLE OPTIONS: I 
PCN WT Convenience package / $ 447.00 

B30 Carpet Floor Inc 

AT2 Delete rear seat $ (200,00) 

PCX Work truck appearance package $ 393.00 

CGN Spray on bedliner ,/ $ 418.00 

2W9 Pickup box delete (req. LGZ, Z82 &.GB0) $ (560.00) 

GBO Locking rear axle $ 292,00 

LGZ 3.6L V6 $ 1,244.00 I 

R9Y Fleet maintenance credit $ (55.00) 

BJA Fuel filler kit (req. ZW9) n/c 

Z82 Trailering package (req. GB0 & LGZ) $ 229.00 

JL 1 Trailer brake controller (req. Z82) $ 209,00. 

TOTAL OPTIONS 
TOTAL COST $ -

AUTHORIZED NAME: (Print) I Robert Evans 

AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE: I I DATE: 10/10/2017 

' 



City of Pontiac 
City Council Memo 

Economic Development 

To: Honorable Mayor Waterman, Council President and City Council 

From: Rachel Loughrin, Director of Economic Development 

Through the Office of the Deputy Mayor, Jane Bais-DiSessa 

Date: 9-14-18 

RE: Application for Industrial Facilities Tax Exemption 
1200 Auburn Road 

Dear Mayor, Council President and City Council Members, 

...., 
C) = :I: ' . = --< (/) 

)> 
rr, 
-c, 

0 
c-; .:-
-; 

-0 -< ::ii: 
0 

I).> r 
rri 0 ;::o c.n ;,<: 

Peninsula Plastics, an Auburn Hills based manufacturer of custom packaging for 

both the automotive and textile industries, has located an approximately 95,000 

square foot vacant building within the City of Pontiac that they would like to 

purchase for the expansion of their operations. 

The anticipated investment for the expansion and cost of new equipment is 

estimated at over $16,000,000 over the next five years. 

Peninsula Plastics is requesting an Industrial Facilities Exemption to help facilitate 

the expansion of their company within the City of Pontiac. The company requests 

that during the Council Meeting on September 18, 2018 that Council schedule a 

Public Hearing for September 25, 2018 for the approval of the Application for the 

Industrial Facilities Tax Exemption, Plant Rehabilitation District. 

Plant Rehabilitation Districts, known as the Industrial Facilities Exemption provides a 

tax incentive to manufacturers to enable the renovation and expansion of aging 

facilities. An exemption will be provided to the facility from ad valorem real and/or 

personal property taxes. 

;;1J 
[Tj 
0 
[77 

< 
[Tj 
0 



Projected hiring for this project stands at 40 full time jobs over the next five years 

with an average salary of $45,000. The company has also provided the City with a 

hiring commitment that will be built into their development agreement for the 

project. The company commits to use good faith efforts to hire at least 25 Pontiac 

residents over the next three years and commits to continue employing Pontiac 

residents. If the company is unable to meet their hiring commitment to the City 

the company will then abide by its penalty provision found within the development 

agreement. 

In accordance with the IFT regulations, before this application may be considered, 

a public hearing is required. As such, the following resolution is recommended; 

WHEREAS, Peninsula Plastics has submitted an application for an Industrial 

Facilities Tax (IFT) Exemption Certificate to rehabilitate 1200 Auburn 

Avenue;and 

WHEREAS, application has been sent to the Office of the City Clerk for 

certification and; 

WHEREAS, the Plant Rehabilitation and Industrial Development Act (Industrial 

Facilities Exemption) (PA 198 of 1974, as amended) Version 4/8/2014 

4 MCL 207.555(2), requires that before acting upon an application, 

the governing legislative body conduct a public hearing, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, thatthe Pontiac City Council directthe City 

Clerk to schedule a public hearing on September 25, 2018 in 

accordance with the Plant Rehabilitation and Industrial Development 

Act (Industrial Facilities Exemption) (PA 198 of 197 4, as amended). 

.... ····.•~-.-..-.-..-..v.'..·.-.-.-, .· _.,_. 



Peninsula Plastics !FT and Brownfield Proposed Timeline 

1. August 28, 2018- Present request to set a public hearing to establish an !FT 

Plant Rehabilitation District for Peninsula Plastics to City Council. City 

Council approves the re_quest to set a public hearing for September 4, 2018 

for the district 

2. September 4, 2018- City Council holds public hearing to establish the 

district. City Council approves the district after the hearing. 

3. September 11, 2018- Present the request to set a public hearing on. the 

application. 

4. September 18, 2018- City Council approves the request to set a public 

hearing for September 25, 2018 on the application 

5. September 25, 2018- City Council holds the public hearing to approve the 

application. Present the approval of the letter of agreement and affidavit of 

fees to City Council for approval. Present request to approve a brownfield 

plan. Present request to set a public hearing to remove parcels from TIFA in 

order to qualify for a brownfield. Note the public hearing notice 

requirement is 20-40 days. 

6. October 2, 2018- City Council approves application, letter of agreement and 

affidavit of fees. City Council votes to approve the scheduling of the public 

hearing for November 6, 2018. 



7. October 23, 2018- TIFA and Brownfield Meetings on Peninsula Plastics 

8. Novem_ber 6, 2018- City Council holds public hearings to remove the TIFA 

parcels and approve the brownfield plan. City Council approves the removal 

and brownfield plan after the hearing. City approves the two required 

Oakland County resolutions to establish the brownfield 

l 
i 

' ! 



Michigan Department of Treasury 
1012 {Rev. 04-14), Page 1 of 4 

Application for Industrial Facilities Tax Exemption Certificate 
Issued under authority of Public Act 198 of 1974, as amended. Filing is mandatory. 

INSTRUCTIONS: File the original and two copies of this form and the required attachments (three complete sets) with the clerk of the 
local government unit. The State Tax Commission (STC) requires two complete sets (one original and one copy). One copy is retained 
by the clerk. If you have any questions regarding the completion of this form, call (517) 373-3302. 

Signature of Clerk 

• Appl!caUon Number 

APPLICANT INFORMATION 
All boxes must be completed. 

To be completed by Clerk of J_pc;arGovermnentUnit 
• Dale Received by Local Unit 

STCUseOnly 
• Date Received by STC 

• 1a. Company Name (App!lcant must be the occupanl/operator of the facility) • 1b. Standard Industrial Classification (SIC) Coda - Sec. 2(10} (4 or 6 Digit Code) 

Peninsula Plastics, Inc. 3252 and 3089 
• 1c. Facllily Address {City, State, ZIP Code) (real and/or personal property location) • 1d. City/Townsh!pMHage (Indicate which) • 1e. County 

1200 Auburn Rd, Pontiac, Ml 48342 Pontiac Oakland 
• 2. Type of Approval Requested • 3a. School District where facility Is localed • 3b. School Code 

0 New (Sec. 2(5)) ~ Transfer Pontiac City School District 63030 
O Speculative Building (Sec. 3(8)) Rehabilitation (Sec. 3(6)) 4, Amount of years requested for exemption (1-12 Years) 

D Research and Development (Sec. 2(10)) D Increase/Amendment Twelve Years 
5. Per section 5, the appHcalion shall contain or be accompanied by a general description of Iha facility and a general description of the (lroposed use of the facmty, the general 
nature and extent of the restoration, replacement, or construction lo be undertaken, a descriptive list of the equipment that will be part o the facility. Attach additional page(s} If 
more room Is needed. 

See Attached Page 

6a, Cost of land and building improvements (excluding cost of land) .............................................................. • 1,500,000 
* Attach 11st of Improvements and associated costs. Real Property Costs 
* Also attach a copy of building permit if project has already begun. 

8,450,000 Comprised of 
6b. Cost of machinery, equlpment, furniture and fixtures • ......... ······························· .. -· .. -····""'''"'" Personal Property ,6,400,000 New and * Attach itemized listing with month, day and year of beginning of installation, plus total 

2,050,000 Relocate 
6c. Total Project Costs .. • 9,550,000 

d 

* Round Costs to Nearest Dollar Total of Real & Personal Costs 

7. Indicate the time schedule for start and finish of construction and equipment installation. Projects must be completed within a two year period of the effective dale of the 
certificate unless otherwise approved by the STC. 

Anticipated Dates 
Begin Date (M/D/Yl End Dale (M/D/Y) 

~Owned 0Leased Real Property Improvements • October 1, 2018 October 1, 2020 • 
Personal Property Improvements • October 1, 2018 October 1, 2020 • ~Owned 0Leased 

• 8. Are State Education Taxes reduced or abated by the Michigan Economic Development Corporation (MEDC}? If yes, applicant must attach a signed MEDC Letter of 
Commitment to receive lhls exemption. ~ Yes D No 

• 9. No. of existing jobs at this facility that wlll be retained as a result of this project. • 10. No. of new jobs at this facility expected to create within 2 years of completion. 
All will be new to the facility 20 Jobs within 2 years, up to 40 within five years. 

11, Rehabilitation apptlcatlons only; Complete a, b and c of this section, You must attach the assessor's statement of SEV for the entire plant rehabllitatlon district and 
obsolescence statement for property, The Taxable Value (TV) data below must be as of December 31 of the year prior to Iha rehabllitatlon. 

a. TV of Real Property (excluding land) . 1,054,765 
b. TV of Personal Property {excluding inventory) . 

c. Total TV ·············································································································· .. ··········· 1,054.765 
• 12a. Check the type of District the facility ls located In: 

D Industrial Development District ~ Plant Rehabilitation Dlslricl 

• 12b. Date district was established by local government unit (contact local unit) • 12c. Is this application for a speculative bulldfng (Sec. 3(8})? 

September 4, 2018 Oves ~No 



1012, Page 2 of 4 

APPLICANT CERTIFICATION· complete all boxes. 
The undersigned, authorized officer of the company making this application certifies that, to the best of his/her knowledge, no Information contained 
herein or in the attachments hereto is false In any way and that all are truly descriptive of the industrial property for whlch this application is being 
submitted. 

It Is further certified that the undersigned is familiar with the provisions of P.A. 198 of 1974, as amended, being Sections 207.551 to 207.572, Inclusive, 
of the Michigan Compiled Laws; and to the best of his/her knowledge and belief, (s)he has complied or will be able lo comply with all of the 
requirements thereof which are prerequisite to the approval of the application by the local unit of government and the issuance of an Industrial Facililles 
Exemption Certificate by the State Tax Commission. 
13a. Preparer Name 13b. Telephone Number 13c. Fax Number 13d. E•mail Address 

Grant Williams 248.267.3340 248.879.2001 williamsg@millercanfield.com 
14a, Name of Contact Person 14b. Telephone Number 140. Fax Number 14d. E-mail Address 

Ryan Victory 248.761.3454 248.852.5482 Wictory@PeninsulaPlastics.e< 
• 15a. Name of Company Officer (No Authorized Agents) 

Ryan Victory, President 
16b. Signature of Company Officer (No Authorized Agents) 15c. Fax Number 15d. Date 

248.852.5482 
• 15e. Malling Address (Street, City, Slate, ZIP Code) 15f. Telephone Number 15g. E-mail Address 

2800 Auburn Court, Auburn Hills, Michigan 48326-3203 248.852.3731 Victory@PeninsulaPlastics.cc 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACTION & CERTIFICATION • complete all boxes. 
This section must be completed by the clerk of the local governing unit before submitting application to the State Tax Commission. Check items on file 
at the local Unit and those Included with the submittal. 

• 16. AcUon taken by local government unit 16b. The State Tax Commission Requires the following documents be filed for an 
administratively complete appf!catlon: D Abatement Approved for ___ Yrs Real (1-12), __ Yrs Pers {1-12) Check or Indicate N/A If Not Applicable 

AflerCompleUon 0Yes 0No 
-
~ 

1. Original Application plus attachments, and one complele copy 

D Denied (Include Resolution Denying) C-
2. Resolution establishing district 

C-
3. Resolution approving/denying application. 

16a. Documents Required to be on file with the Local Unit C-
4. Letter of Agreement (Signed by local unit and applicant) 

Check or Indicate N/A If Not Applicable C-
5. Affidavit of Fees (Signed by local unit and applicant) 

~ ,. "~" "" ,., '"" ..... , _,, .... ,,_ C-
6. Building Permit for real improvements If project has already begun 

2. Notice to taxing authorities of opportunity for a hearing. 
C-

7. Equipment List with dates of beginning of Installation 

3. List of taxing authorities notified for district and application action. 
C-

8. Form 3222 (if applicable) 

4. Lease Agreement showing applicants tax Habllity. 
C-

9. Speculative building resolution and affidavits (if applicable) 

16o. LUCI Code 16d. School Code 

17. Name of local Government Body • 18. Date of Resolution Approving/Denying this Application 

Attached hereto Is an original application and all documents llsted In 16b. I also certify that all documents listed in 16a are on file at the local 
unit for Inspection at any time, and that any leases show sufficient tax llabllity. 

19a. Signature of Clerk 119b. Name of Clerk 119c, E-mail Address 

19d. Clerk's Ma!Hng Address (Streel, City, State, ZIP Code) 

19e. Telephone Number I 19f. Fax Number 

State Tax Commission Rule Number 57: Complete applications approved by the local unit and received by the State Tax Commission by October 31 
each year wlll be acted upon by December 31. Applications received after October 31 may be acted upon In the following year. 

Local Unit: Mail one original and one copy of the completed applicatlon and all required attachments to: 
Michigan Department of Treasury 
State Tax Commission 
PO Box30471 
Lansing, Ml 48909 

(For guaranteed receipt by the STC, it is recommended that applications are sent by certified mall.) 

.STCOSE.ONLY 
• LUCI Code • Begin Date Real • Begin Date Personal • End Dale Real • End Date Personal 

m 

n, 



1012, Page 3 of 4 

Instruction for Completing Form 1012, 
Industrial Facilities Tax Exemption (/FT) Application 

The completed original application form 1012 and all 
required attachments, MUST be filed with the clerk of 
the local unit of government where the facility is or will 
be located. Complete applications must be received by 
the State Tax Commission by October 31 to ensure 
processing and certification for the following tax year. 
Applications received after the October 31 deadline 
will be processed as expeditiously as possible. 

Please note that attachments listed on the application 
in number 16a are to be retained by the local unit of 
government, and attachments listed in number 16b are 
to be included with the application when forwarding 
to the State Tax Commission (STC). 

(Before commencement of a project the local unit of 
government must establish a district, or the applicant 
must request in writing a district be established, in 
order to qualify for an IFT abatement. Applications 
and attachments must be received by the local unit of 
government within six months of commencement of 
project.) 

The following infol'lnation is required on separate 
documents attached to form 1012 by the applicant 
and provided to the local unit of government ( city, 
township 01· village), (Providing an accurate school 
district whe1·e the facility is located is vital.}: 

1. Legal description of the real prope1iy on which the 
facility is or will be located. Also provide property 
identification number if available. 

2. Personal Property Requirements: Complete list of 
new machinery, equipment, furniture and fixtures 
which wi II be used in the facility. The list should 
include description, beginning date of installation 
or expected installation by month/day/year, and 
costs or expected costs (see sample). Detail listing 
of machinery and equipment must match amount 
shown on question 6b of the application. Personal 
property applications must have attached a certified 
statement/affidavit as proof of the beginning date 
of installation (see sample). 

3. Real Property Requirements: Proof of date the 
construction started (groundbreaking). Applicant 
must include one of the following if the project has 
already begun; building permit, footings inspection 
report, or certified statement/affidavit from 
contractor indicating exact date of commencement. 

4. Complete copy of lease agreement as executed, if 
applicable, verifying lessee (applicant) has direct ad 
valorem real and/or personal property tax liability. 
The applicant must have real and/or personal 
property tax liability to qualify for an IFT abatement 
on leased property. If applying for a real property 
tax exemption on leased property, the lease must run 
the full length of time the abatement is granted by 
the local unit of government. Tax liability for leased 
property should be determined before sending to the 
STC. 

The following information is required of the local llllit 
of government: [Please note that only items 2, 4, 5, 6, 
& 7 below are forwarded to the State Tax 
Commission with the application, along with items 2 
& 3 from above. The original is required by the STC. 
The remaining items are to be retained at the local unit 
of government for future reference. (The local unit 
must verify that the school district listed on all lFT 
applications is conect.)l 

1. A copy of the notice to the general public and the 
certified notice to the property owners concerning 
the establishment of the district. 

2. Ce1·tified copy of the resolution establishing the 
Industrial Development Distl'ict (IDD) or Plant 
Rehabilitation District (PRD), which includes 
a legal descl'iption of the district (see sample). 
If the district was not established prior to the 
commencement of constrnction, the local unit 
shall include a certified copy or date stamped 
copy of the written request to establish the 
district. 

3. Copy of the notice and the certified letters to the 
taxing authorities regarding the hearing to approve 
the application. 

4. Certified copy of the 1·esolution approving the 
application, The resolution must include the 
number of years the local unit is granting the 
abatement and the statement "the granting of 
the Industl'ial Facilities Exemption Certificate 
shall not have the effect of substantially 
impeding the operation of (governmental unit), 
m· impairing the financial soundness of a taxing 
unit which levies ad valorem property taxes in 
(governmental unit-see sample). 



1012, Page 4 of 4 

5. Letter of Agreement (signed by the local unit of 
govemment and the applicaut per P.A. 334 of 1993 (see 
sample). 

6. Affidavit of Fees (signed by the local unit of 
government and the applicant), (Bulletin 3, January 
16, 1998). This statement may be incorporated into the 
Letter of Agreement (see sample). 

7. Treasury Form 3222 (if applicable - Fiscal Statement 
for Tax Abatement Request. 

The following information is required for 
rehabilitation applications in addition to the above 
requh·ements: 

I. A listing of existing machinery, equipment, furniture and 
fixtures which will be replaced or renovated. This listing 
should include description, beginning date of installation 
or expected installation by month/day/year, and costs or 
expected costs. 

2. A rehabilitation application must include a statement from 
the Assessor showing the taxable valuation of the plant 
rehabilitation district, separately stated for real property 
(EXCLUDING LAND) and personal property. Attach a 
statement from the assessor indicating the 
obsolescence of the property being rehabilitated. 

The following info1•mation is required for speculative 
building applications in aclclition to the above 
1·equirements: 

I. A certified copy of the resolution to establish a speculative 
building. 

2. A statement of non-occupancy from the owner and the 
assessor. Please refer to the following Web site for P.A. 
198 of 1974: 

Please refer to the following Web site for P.A. 198 of 
1974: www.legislature.mi.gov/. For more information and 
Frequently Asked Questions, visit our Web site at 
www.michigan.gov/p1·opertytaxexemptions. 

For guaranteed receipt by the State Tax Commission, it is 
recommended that applications and attachments are sent 
by certified mail. 



Schedule 6 

6(B) - Personal Property 

Antlci(!ated Personal Estimated Antlci(!ated 
Pro(!ert',! Cost Installation Date 

CNC $200,000 ,-
Dust Collection $250,000 
I - - .. $400,000 
~ 

Installation dates do not J $100,000 

' 
account for delays for long 

$1,650,000 
~ lead time items or 10/1/2018-
~ construction delays $200,000 

>,,-12/31/2018 $250,000 I-

"°' $450,000 
Racking $100,000 
Electrical upgrade $650,000 
Fire Suppression $250,000 
Former #1 $950,000 

,~. 
10/1/2019 

Former#2 $950,000 10/1/2020 

Subtotal .. 6,400,000 

Estimated 
Relocated Personal Acguisitlon 

Pro(!ert',! Cost 
Sheet Extruder #1 $1,000,000 -
CNC $400,000 
Mold Shop $350,000 

p,- 10/1/2018-
Injection Molder #1 $75,000 

12/31/2018 Injection Molder #2 $75,000 
other $150,000 

. 
Subtotal $2,050,000 
Total $8,450,000 



Pontiac, Michigan 

ORDINANCE NO. 

TAX EXEMPTION ORDINANCE 

ADOPTED: ----~2018 

An Ordinance to provide for a service charge in lieu of taxes for a housing project for low income persons 
and families to be financed with a federally-aided Mortgage Loan pursuant to the provisions of the State 
Housing Development Authority Act of 1966 (1966 PA 346, as amended; MCL 125.1401, et seq.; the 
11Act11

). 

THE CITY OF PONTIAC 

ORDAINS: 

SECTION 1. This Ordinance shall be known and cited as the "Tax Exemption Ordinance. The 
Hamilton." 

SECTION 2. Preamble. 

It is acknowledged that it is a proper public purpose of the State of Michigan and its political subdivisions 
to provide housing for its low income persons and families and to encourage the development of such 
housing by providing for a service charge in lieu of property taxes in accordance with the Act. The City is 
authorized by this Act to establish or change the service charge to be paid in lieu of taxes by any or all 
classes of housing exempt from taxation under this Act at any amount it chooses, not to exceed the taxes 
that would be paid but for this Act. It is further acknowledged that such housing for low income persons 
and families is a public necessity, and as the City will be benefited and improved by such housing, the 
encouragement of the same by providing real estate tax exemption for such housing is a valid public 
purpose. It is fmther acknowledged that the continuance of the provisions of this Ordinance for tax 
exemption and the service charge in lieu of all ad valorem taxes during the period contemplated in this 
Ordinance are essential to the determination of economic feasibility of the housing project that is 
constructed with financing extended in reliance on such tax exemption. 

The City acknowledges that the Sponsor: The Hamilton Limited Dividend Housing Association Limited 
Partnership, a Michigan limited partnership, has offered, snbject to receipt of an allocation under the 
LIHTC Program by the Michigan State Housing Development Authority, to construct, own and operate a 
forty-two ( 42) unit housing project identified as The Hamilton on certain property located at 5 Carter Street 
in the City to serve low income persons and families, and that the Sponsor has offered to pay the City, on 
account of this housing project, an annual service charge for public services in lieu of all ad valorem 
property taxes. 

SECTION 3. Definitions. 

A. "Authority" means the Michigan State Housing Development Authority. 



B. "Annual Shelter Rent" means the total collections during an agreed annual period from or 
paid on behalf of all occupants of a housing project representing rent or occupancy charges, exclusive of 
Utilities (as hereafter defined). 

C. "LIHTC Program" means the Low Income Housing Tax Credit program administered by 
the Authority under Section 42 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. 

D. "Low Income Persons and Fatnilies" means persons and families eligible to move into a 
housing project. 

E. "Mortgage Loan" means a loan that is Federally-Aided (as defined in Section 11 of the 
Act) or a loan or grant made or to be made by the Authority to the Sponsor for the construction, 
rehabilitation, acquisition and/or pem1anent financing of a housing project, and secured by a mortgage on 
the housing project. 

F. "Sponsor" means The Hamilton Limited Dividend Ho11sing Association Limited 
Partnership, a Michigan limited partnership, and any entity that receives or assumes a Mortgage Loan. 

G. "Utilities" means charges for gas, electric, water, sanitary sewer and other utilities 
furnished to the occupants that are paid by the housing project. 

SECTION 4. Class of Housing Projects. 

It is determined that the class of housing projects to which the tax exemption shall apply and for which a 
service charge shall be paid in lieu of such taxes shall be housing projects for Low Income Persons and 

. Fatnilies that are fmanced with a Mortgage Loan. It is further determined that The Hamilton is of this 
class. 

SECTION 5. Establishment of Annual Service Charge. 

The housing project identified as The Hamilton and the property on which will lie located shall be exempt 
from all ad valorem property taxes from and after the commencement of construction or rehabilitation. The 
City acknowledges that the Sponsor and the Authority have established the economic feasibility of the 
housing project in reliance upon the enactment and continuing effect of this Ordinance, an<:! the qualification 
of the housing project for exemption from all ad valorem prope1ty taxes and a payment in lieu of taxes as 
established in this Ordinance. Therefore, in consideration of the Sponsor's offer to construct and operate 
the housing project, the City agrees to accept payment of an annual service charge for public services in 
lieu of all ad valorem property taxes. Subject to receipt of a Mortgage Loan, the annual service charge shall 
be equal to 6 % of the Annual Shelter Rent actually collected by the housing project during each operating 
year. 

SECTION 6. Contractual Effect of Ordinance. 

Notwithstanding the provisions of section 15(a)(5) of the Act to the contrary, a contract between the City 
and the Sponsor with the Authority as third party beneficiary under the contract, to provide tax exemption 
and accept payments in lieu of taxes, as previously described, is effectuated by enactment of this Ordinance. 



SECTION 7. Limitation on the Payment of Annual Service Charge. 

Notwithstanding Section 5, the service charge to be paid each year in lieu of taxes for the part of the housing 
project that is tax exempt but which is occupied by other than low income persons or families shall be equal 
to the full amount of the taxes which would be paid on that portion of the housing project if the housing 
project were not tax exempt. 

SECTION 8. Payment of Service Charge. 

The ammal service charge in lieu of taxes as determined under this Ordinance shall be payable in the same 
manner as general property taxes are payable to the City and distributed to the several units levying the 
general property tax in the same proportion as prevailed with the general property tax in the current calendar 
year. The annual payment for each operating year shall be paid on or before July I st of the operating year.' 
Collection procedures shall be in accordance with the provisions of the General Property Tax Act (1893 
PA 206, as amended; MCL 211.1, et seq.). 

SECTION9. Duration. 

This Ordinance shall remain in effect and shall not tenninate so long as: (i) the Hamilton housing project 
has commenced construction on the forty-two ( 42) units on the property within two (2) years of the effective 
date of this Ordinance; and (ii) a) a Mortgage Loan remains outstanding and unpaid; and b) the housing 
project remains subject to income and rent restrictions under the LIHTC Program but inno case longer than 
sixteen (16) years from the date of the certificate of occupancy issued by the City for the housing project. 

SECTION 10. Severability. 

The various sections and provisions of this Ordinance shall be deemed to be severable, and should any 
section or provision of this Ordinance be declared by any court of competent jurisdiction to be 
unconstitutional or invalid the same shall not affect the validity of this Ordinance as a whole or any section 
or provision of this Ordinance, other than the section or provision so declared to be unconstitutional or 
invalid. 

SECTION 11. Jnconsistent Ordinances. 

All ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent or in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance are 
repealed to the extent of such inconsistency or conflict. 

Section 12. Effective Date. 

This Ordinance shall become effective on _____ ~ 2018, as provided in the City Charter. 

By: 

CITY CLERK 

W:\Clients\City of Pontiac\PJLOT Ordinances MSHDA Housing\Ordinance - FINAL - The Hammon V02 09-07-18.docx 



City of Pontiac 
City Council Memo 

Economic Development 

To: Honorable Mayor Waterman, Council President and City Council 

From: Rachel Loughrin, Director. of Economic Development 

Through the Office of the Deputy Mayor, Jane Bais-DiSessa 

Date: 9-07-18 

RE: Request for approval of PILOT Ordinance - Second Reading 
The Hamilton, 5 Carter Street 

Dear Mayor, Council President and City Council Members, 

u c:) 
z 
-1 
):c• 
(':') 

C-) 

-l 
-< 
M 
r 
rn 
:;:o 
:::,<: 

On September 04, 2018, the proposed Ordinance for a payment in lieu of taxes 
(PILOT) was introduced for The Hamilton, 5 Carter Street. 

MSHDA has awarded LIHTC housing credits for this project and the Executive 

Office recommends adoption of the ordinance. 

...., 
= = en ,.,, 
-0 
I 

-.J 

" :x 
r-3 .. 
N 
\D 

In addition, we are requesting approval of the Municipal Services Agreement and 
Development Agreement that are a part of this project The agreements are 
attached for your review and consideration. 

Since the agreements are crucial to the success of the PILOT ordinance, we are 

recommending that the Council adopt the following resolution. 

Resolution for the Approval of the Municipal Services Agreement and 
Development Agreement between The Hamilton Limited Dividend Housing 
Association Limited Partnership and the City of Pontiac. 

WHEREAS, the Pontiac City Council adopted a Low Income Housing Tax 

Exemption Ordinance, effective September 28, 2018, that exempts The 

;;o 
fT1 
0 
fT1 
< rn 
0 



Hamilton Limited Dividend Housing Association Limited Partnership (The 

Hamilton) from property taxes in lieu of a service charge, commonly referred 

to as "Payment in Lieu of Taxes" ("PILOT"); and 

WHEREAS, the City and The Hamilton have entered into a Municipal Services 
Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the City and The Hamilton also have entered into a Development 
Agreement regarding the PILOT; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT, the Pontiac City Council approves 

the Municipal Services Agreement and Development Agreement between The 

Hamilton Limited Divided Housing Association Limited Partnership and the 

City of Pontiac. 

Be it further resolved that the Pontiac City Council authorize the Mayor to 
execute the agreements on behalf of the City. 



MUNICIPAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

THIS MUNICIPAL SERVICES AGREEMENT entered into this __ day of ___ _ 
2018 between THE HAMILTON LIMITED DNIDEND HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED 
PARTNERSHIP, a Michigan limited partnership of 500 South Front Street, 10th Floor, Columbus, 
Ohio 43215, (hereinafter referred to as the "OWNER") and City of Pontiac, a Michigan municipal 
corporation, of 47450 Woodward Avenue, Pontiac Michigan 48342 (hereinafter referred to as the 
"CITY"). 

RECITALS 

A. The OWNER intends to purchase and develop a housing project for low to moderate 
income families, to be known as The Hamilton Apartments, financed in part by Low 
Income Housing Tax Credits (LIHTC), administered by the Michigan State Housing 
Development Authority (MSHDA) on land legally described on Exhibit "A", 
(hereinafter referred to as the "PROJECT"). 

B. The OWNER desires to guarantee that certain municipal services will be provided to 
the PROJECT during the term that the Payment in Lieu of Taxes (hereinafter referred 
to as the "PILOT'') Ordinance for this PROJECT is in place, such municipal services 
to exclude normal water, sewer, and other utility charges as well as special 
assessment charges ( which must be paid separately and at duly established rates) and 
similar charges and to include only: 

1. Emergency services, including police and ambulance (at normal published 
rates) and fire service specifically administered through the CITY; 

2. Other miscellaneous services as may, from time to time, be mutually agreed 
to for the benefit of the PROJECT; 

3. Said municipal services shall be provided in the customary way, in a 
competent and workmanlike manner, and in accordance with all laws, rules 
and regulations of the United States of America, State of Michigan, County 
of Oakland, and City of Pontiac or other applicable jurisdictions or bodies. 

(All of the above collectively referred to as "Municipal Services") 

AGREEMENT 

The parties agree as follows: 

Page 1 of3 



1. The payment for Municipal Services shall ·be computed as follows: Ten Thousand 
Dollars ($10,000) will be paid concurrent with the annual PILOT payment for The 
Hamilton Apartments. Each year the annual MSA payment shall be increased per tlie 
published Consumer Price Index for all products Midwest region. The maximum 
yearly adjustment shall be 3 %. 

2. Payment for Municipal Services shall commence at the tin1e the first PILOT payment 
is made and will remain in effect for as long as a payment-in-lieu-of-taxes ordinance 
is in place for the project. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Municipal Services Agreement is executed as of the day 
and year first written above. 

WITNESSES: THE HAMILTON LIMITED DIVIDEND 
HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED 
PARTNERSHIP, A Michigan Limited 
Partnership 

By: THE HAtvfILTON GP, LLC, 
An Ohio limited liability company 
Its General Partner 

By: Wada Cooper General Partner, LLC 
An Ohio limited liability company 
Its Sole Member 

By: Wada Cooper Communities, LLC 
An Ohio limited liability company 
Its Sole Member 

By: ___________ ~_ 
David Cooper Jr., Vice President & 
Associate General Counsel 

CITY OF PONTIAC 

By: ___________ _ 

Its: Mayor 

Page2 of3 



EXHIBIT A 

ASSESSORS SVBD NO 1 To Be Completed 

Page 3 of3 



Development Agreement 

(5 Carter Street - The Hamilton) 

This Development Agreement (the "Agreerilent") is executed and effective this __ Day of August 
2018, between the CITY OF PONTIAC (the "City"), a Michigan municipal corporation, and The Hamilton 
Limited Dividend Housing Association Limited Partnership (the "Owner"), a Michigan limited 
partnership. 

WHEREAS, the Owner is constructing a 42 unit, 4 story multi-family affordable housing development at 
5 Carter Street, in the City of Pontiac; and 

WHEREAS, the Owner wishes to utilize Payment in Lieu ofTaxes as well as the MSHDA LIHTC program; 

NOW THEREFORE, the Owner has requested a Payment In Lieu of Taxes (PILOT) from the City and other 
considerations, which the City is willing to provide so long as thefollowingterms and conditions as noted 
below are agreed upon and adhered to for the length of the PILOT. 

Terms & Conditions 

In consideration for the foregoing, Owner. hereby agrees as follows: 

1. No Pr.eerilptlon; Unless otherwise provided for specifically herein, this Agreement shall not be 
deemed to waive, preempt or make unnecessary any applicable municipal or governmental 
processes. This includes, but ·1s not limited to zoning, variances, brownfield and economic 
incentives, assessments or fees and that Owners and/or Users are required to submit and 
participate for any appropriate process as provided in the City's ordinances, City Charter, 
including any applicable City Commlssion(s) and City Council matters and processes. 

2. Jobs. Owner shall make all reasonable efforts to use Pontiac contractors and subcontractors, as 
well as hire Pontiac residents. Owner shall also establish an internship or apprenticeship program 
focused on the education of Pontiac residents. Owner has entered a memorandum of 
understanding (MOU) with HerCo.Org, LLC to provide 15 "ready to work" Section 3 (to be known 
as apprentices) at The Hamilton construction site. 

3. Notification of Transfer. Within a 48-hour period of its occurrence, Owner must notify City in 
the event of a transfer of general partnership or of ownership of the building. 

4. Management Notification. The Owner shall provide the City and the Building Official with the name 
and address of the Management Company and the name and direct contact information (phone and 
email) of the Management Company's primary Manager. Should Management company fall into poor 
standing with the City, Operator will be required to provide a monthly report to the Mayor's 



City of Pontiac 
Development Agreement 

office outlining each violation and the timeline and process for amending said violations. Poor 

standing is defined, but not limited as three or more code enforcement citations written for the same 
violation, with no action taken to rectify matter. 

5. Annual Review. Rental Inspection Certification shall be conducted on an annual basis. The City's 

Building Safety division shall hold an Annual Review of all ordinance violations with the 

Management Company. 

6. Vacancy. Vacancy rate shall be reported to City, for the preceding year and on a monthly basis, 

at time of Annual Review. 

7. Security. Management Company must develop and maintain a municipally approved security 

plan. At the time of Annual Review, Owner must also provide the City with the latest Incident 

report from the Sheriffs office. The City shall decide whether the security plan shall be amended. 

8, Maintenance Reserve, Owner will maintain a reasonable maintenance reserve, and will provide 

a proforma of that account at Annual Review. 

9. Resident Council. The management company is to assist renters with the establishment of a 

Resident Council. 

10. ComJ.!Hance with AJ.!pHcable Regulations, Owner hereby agrees to cause its respective Property 

to comply with all local, State and Federal regulations applicable to such Property, as may be 

amended. 

11. Term. This Agreement shall correspond to the term of the PILOT agreement as approved by the 

Pontiac City Council. 

12. Notices. All notices or communications required by this Agreement may be dellvered either in

person, or by registered mail to parties listed below: 

TotheCity: 

City of Pontiac 

47450 Woodward Avenue 

Pontiac, Ml 48342 

Attention: Deputy Mayor 

2 



City of Pontiac 
Development Agreement 

With Copy To: 

City of Pontiac 
Attention: Building Official 
47450 Woodward Avenue 
Pontiac, Ml 48342 
Attention: Building Official 

To the Owner: 

Woda Cooper Development, Inc, 
500 S. Front Street, 10th Floor 
Columbus, Ohio 43215 
Attention: Mala Boitano 

13 .. Blndihg Effect. This Agreement shall be binding upon the parties hereto and upon their 
respective permitted successors and assigns. 

14. Conditions of Breach and Costs. Upon finding of breach pursuant to legal action, the Owner shall 
be responsible for all costs and fees associated with such action, including all actual attorney's 
fees. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be duly executed as of the 
date first written above. 

3 

OWNER: 

The Hamilton Limited Dividend Housing 
Association Limited Partnership, a Michigan 
limited partnership 

By: n~ 
Name: Maia P. Boitaho 
Title: Vice President and Associate 
General Counsel 

CITY: 

CITY OF PONTIAC 
A Michigan municipal corporation 

Hon. Deirdre Waterman 
Mayor 



CITY OF PONTIAC 
Department of Building Safety & Planning 

Mayor Deirdre Waterman 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Honorable Mayor, Council President, and City Council 

FROM: Vern Gustafsson - Planning Manager 
Through the Office of Deputy Mayor- Jane Bais-DiSessa 

SUBJECT: PF 18-05 The Hamilton • Off-Street Parking 
5 Carter Street I PIN 64-14-29-408-005 

DATE: September 13, 2018 

D ,.__, 
C) = ~- = 
-·· C/) 

)> f71 
-0 C) 

C-) .i=-
~,, ---~ -~. -0 

::I!: 
n 

~ r 
JTl w ;:o 
:::,:; c:::, 

At the City Council September 11th meeting, a citizen commented that the number of off-street parking 
spaces for the proposed Hamilton project does not seem to be adequate. 

Following review of our files and Planning Commission minutes. The Planning Division prepared a 
Technical Site Plan Review report ofThe Hamilton including proposed off-street parking dated March 2, 
2018, as attached. At the Planning Commission meeting on March 3, 2018, the Commission reviewed 
the Site Development Plans; the applicant provided 45 parking spaces [1 parking space/unit). Per the 
Zoning Ordinance, 82 parking spaces are required [1.1 parking space/bedroom); a waiver of 32 parking 
spaces. Per the Zoning Ordinance, Section 4.304, A., the Planning Commission may modify the numerical 
requirements for off-street parking. 

Following the application review and decision at the Planning Commission meeting, the Commission 
voted to approve the Site Development Plan and waive parking requirements to allow 45 off-street 
parking spaces based on the determination that a stacked affordable housing development does not 
support the number of required off-street parking spaces. Also, the project location in Downtown 
Pontiac has good access to public transit and available visitor parking at near-by public off-street and 
on-street parking. 

· -,imo \VoodwarifXve•·PoNTIAC, MICHIGA:N"4~42cSO0 
TELEPHONE: (248) 758-3700 • FAX: (248) 758-3750 

;;\J 
177 
0 
fTl 
< 
177 
0 



CITY OF PONTIAC 
Department of Building Safety & Planning 

Mayor Deirdre Waterman 

March 2, 2018 

ATTENTION: Planning Commission 

SUBJECT: Site Plan Review 
Hamilton Limited Dividend Housing Associates 
PIN# 14-29-408-005 
Five Carter Street 
City of Pontiac Case No. PF-18-05 

Dear Commissioners: 

The City of Pontiac is in receipt of an application for Site Plan Review received on January 15, 2018. The site 
plan proposes the development of the land area associated with the parcel ID 14-29-408-005 through• 009. 
The applicant intends to develop this property to be Multi-Family Apartments, reaching a height of four 
stories, and supporting 42. units, ranging from 1-bedroom to 3-bedroom units. The parcel is currently located 
within the Downtown Loop and zoned Downtown Commercial (C-2). 

The subject site addressed Five Carter Street, covers 1.2 acres and consists of several existing parcels, 14-29-
408-005 through -009. The applicant plans to combine and split the parcels to match the final proposed site 
layout. To the east and south are C-2 Downtown Commercial properties, and additional C-2 Residential Use 
buildings to the north. The site is located in the Pontiac Downtown Historic District. 

Site Plan Review Required information (Sec. 6.208) 

a. Site Plan Details 

i. Provide an exterior lighting plan all proposed an existing lighting for parking lots, 

building, and common areas that includes lighting locations, heights of light from 

grade, light specifications, lamp types, and methods of shielding. On the lighting 

plan, additional information about the lighting sources is required to ensure that all 

lighting has full cutoff housings and is fully shielded. Also, add a note on the lighting 

plan that describes the hours of operation for the lighting (Sec 4.502) and (Sec 

2.526). 

ii. Provide a photometric plan indicating light intensity throughout the site in foot

candles. 

iii. Provide specifications and details for each light fixture including total lumen output, 

------t p~~flamp, and method of shj=el=d=in=g~. _________ _ 

47450 Woodward Ave• PONTIAC, MICHIGAN 48342-5009 
TELEPHONE: (248) 758-3700 • FAX: (248) 758-3750 



iv. Proposed Ground-Mounted Sign will require approval from the Planning 

Commission 

b. Building and Architectural Details 

i. Exterior architectural details must comply with the design requirements found 

within Sec 2.408.B. 

c. Access and Circulation 

i. Curbing for all paved surfaces and sidewalks, with width and depth dimensions 

ii. Designation of Fire Lane and No Parking Lanes 

iii. Parking space calculations, including Barrier Free Parking (Building Codes) and 

parking requirements of the Zoning Ordinance -Sec. 4.303. and 4.305. F 

iv. Details along accessible routes, parking's signs, ramps and clearances that provide 

sufficient grade information to comply with City building codes-Sec. 4.305 

!ll'r1T~>\1J«l'<',?$~"t'"'¢il~si""fi~."'~lr'""a'iin'<iwy1\ii'\"~H,i\W,""~~;;s·~'.ttf"'0".·.· d@· IJ."' Jrc\!,_~M.~eLI !!.l..'~•filt,ya --~-!IJb,-,,,~~.s!H Elz',,OJJ 

~imn~Jili&sid~M'.tRmi~lDIDil!nN.4 
W°lWtlm$.IIJl!jfam!1fjfd[®J)iffi1ij§,l1:;SJlil1~1,i'l/l:lhM@l~'wt!~~inlDJI 
fni&\Mi6M~1l<!tl'f~'J,'J!dffitl1Bmr41 

~l~'~t~~51¢ont0JtlMUiilffitiRdlE:tm"dioi?la!il 
tlf•Jm'lildifil@ffitniWiflb;mrrAtihiffiaiito1fe'ffi!m'.~~RM 

dtil11lilifiljgiit41f4U1MtcieiiiikMt«etiffiiNlidli'tl11!i~ 
"1:a ·mu,.,Jli'ivulr1fof""'W r.Wlf/liftl!b"e'tlfri!f,1fiiiffeM"'r"'%,.. · M'-.f+'alti111 Wlll.K!!.m~,w.:MlJJ.lPJl!llu1JJOOJ--- . ~ .J>J-~JM..l!!°i~~-··"' 
~™1od?iiffl~if¥ffllffiffil'itll@lit~~--ll11Jtmi 
t11wt ':n"'~r¥*1f<t"'"a·fi&"t1lfh!'of[ffl¥if'i'tl!i@fi'·%1reti\'ilWfsi'm'at:Hi1fiff~ucll ! . .,.,P.,JlLJ,,,Q3llmOJllf!J __ ,-~!R~JL ""'·g"•¥ . ., .. _. , ... , ... .J ... ,..,11 

!iP~lm~JiWsmtir<io~1iMJ 

d. Landscaping and Screening 

i. Provide landscaping plan that meets the requirements of Sec 4.404, 

ii. Illustrate parking lot buffer along Carter street- Sec. 4.406.A 

iii. Planting list for proposed landscape materials -Sec 4.411 

iv. Illustrate interior parking lot landscaping and provide calculations on landscaping 

plan- Sec 4.405.C 

v. The zoning ordinance requires the screening wall for the dumpster to be a masonry 

wall. The planning commission may waive the required screening when they 

determine that no significant negative effects will result from the waiver of such 

screening 

vi. Add street canopy shade trees along Carter Street on 35' centers to comply with this 

requirement -Sec. 4.407 

Based upon the materials submitted by the applicant, we are recommending Site Plan Approval be granted 
by the Planning Commission for the proposed Five Carter Street development with the following five 
conditions: 

47450 Woodward Ave• PONTIAC, MICHIGAN 48342-5009 
TELEPHONE: (248) 758-3700 • FAX: (248) 758-3750 



1) Revise exterior architectural details that comply with the requirements found within Section 
2.408; and 

2) landscape Plan that complies with all of the Zoning Ordinance requirements must be submitted 
to the Planning Division for administrative review and approval prior to issuance of a building 
permit including a tree survey; and 

3) lighting Plan with Photometrics that complies with all of the Zoning Ordinance requirements 
must be submitted to the Planning Division for administrative review and approval prior to 
issuance of a building permit; and 

4) Obtain approval from the Pontiac Historic District Commission; and 

5} Final City Engineering administrative approval must be received prior issuance of a building 
permit. 

Sincerely yours, 

Arthur F. Mullen, AICP 
Interim City Planner 

cc: Mr. Michael Wilson, Building Official 
Mr. Adam Hofmann, JGH Consulting 

47450 Woodward Ave• PONTIAC, MICHIGAN 48342-5009 
TELEPHONE: (248) 758-3700 • FAX: (248) 758-3750 



I 

! 

I 

I 



City of Pontiac 
City Council Memo 

Economic Development 

To: Honorable Mayor Waterman, Council President and City Council. 

From: Rachel Loughrin, Director of Economic Development 
.... u ~ (.") = ;;;:: ex> 
-I (/) 

Through: Office of the Deputy Mayor, Jane Bais-DiSessa (Tl )> 

" n I 

Date: 9-07-18 
C-) -.I 
... ,, 
-< -u 

RE: Introduction of a PILOT Ordinance 
:;.: 

0 N 
Winston Commons, 69 Douglas Street 

r· .. 
rn (,) 
;,::i + ::s: 

Dear Mayor, Council President and City Council Members, 

The Woda Group has requested a payment in lieu of taxes (PILOT) ordinance from 
the City for the proposed 69 Douglas Street development, "Winston Commons". 
This PILOT request is at 6% of shelter rents and is in combination with a Municipal 
Services Agreement for $13,000 per year with an annual increase in line with the 
consumer price index, which is around approximately 3% per year. The duration of 
the PILOT will be for the duration of the mortgage but in no case for l'onger than 16 

years. 

The proposed 54-unit, town home development will provide affordable housing to 
Pontiac residents. The development is slated for general occupancy, marketed 
toward working singles, families and seniors. The 54 units will add approximately 
100 new residents to our downtown area. The proposed.breakdown of units is as 

follows; 

• 9 one bedroom units 

• 38 two bedroom units 

• 7 three bedroom units 

;;;o 
(Tl 
(") 
Pl 
< 
(Tl 
0 



Should the Council vote to approve this PILOT request, the approval should be 

contingent upon the MSHDA award of the LIHTC housing credit. 

lh addition, the City Attorney will need to draft an ordinance for your 
consideration. The ordinance will require both a first and second reading prior to 
its adoption. 

Please find attached a copy of the following materials; 

1. Draft Ordinance 
2. Municipal Services Agreement 
3. Development Agreement 
4. HerCO Letter of Intent 
5. Site drawings including Site Plan & Elevations 
6. Aerial showing existing conditions 
7. Rent and income limits information 



Pontiac, Michigan 

ORDINANCE NO. 

TAX EXEMPTION ORDINANCE 

ADOPTED: ----~2018 

An Ordinance to provide for a service charge in lieu of taxes for a housing project for low income persons 
and families to be financed with a federally-aided Mortgage Loan pursuant to the provisions of the State 
Housing Development Authority Act of 1966 (1966 PA 346, as amended; MCL 125.1401, et seq.; the 
"Act"). 

THE CITY OF PONTIAC 

ORDAINS: 

SECTION 1. This Ordinance shall be known and cited as the "Tax Exemption· Ordinance-Winston 
Commons. 11 

SECTION 2. Preamble. 

It is acknowledged that it is a proper public purpose of the State of Michigan and its political subdivisions 
to provide housing for its low income persons and families and to encourage the development of such 
housing by providing for a service charge in lieu of property taxes in accordance with the Act. The City is 
authorized by this Act to establish or change the service charge to be paid in lieu of taxes by any or all 
classes of housing exempt from taxation under this Act at any amount it chooses, not to exceed the taxes 
that would be paid but for this Act. It is further acknowledged that such housing for low income persons 
and families is a public necessity, and as the City will be benefited and improved by such housing, the 
encouragement of the same by providing real estate tax exemption for such housing is a valid public 
purpose. It is further acknowledged that the continuance of the provisions of this Ordinance for tax 
exemption and the service charge in lieu of all ad valorem taxes during the period contemplated in this 
Ordinance are essential to the determination of economic feasibility of the housing project that is 
constructed with financing extended in reliance on such tax exemption. 

The City acknowledges that the Sponsor: Wimto11 Co111111011s Limited Dividend Housing Association 
Limited Partnership, a Michigan limited parl11eJ'ship, has offered, subject to receipt of an allocation under 
the LIHTC Program by the Michigan State Housing Development Authority, to construct, own and operate 
a fifty-four (54) unit housing project identified as Winston Commons on certain property located at 69 
Douglas Street in the City to serve low income persons and families, and that the Sponsor has offered to 
pay the City, on account of this housing project, an annual service charge for public services in lieu of all 
ad valorem property taxes. 

SECTION 3. Definitions. 

A. "Authority" means the Michigan State Housing Development Authority. 



B. "Annual Shelter Rent" means the total collections during an agreed annual period from or 
paid on behalf of all occupants of a housing project representing rent or occupancy charges, exclusive of 
Utilities (as hereafter defined). 

C. "LIHTC Program" means the Low Income Housing Tax Credit program administered by 
the Authority under Section 42 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. 

D. "Low Income Persons and Families" means persons and families eligible to move into a 
housing proj eel. 

E. "Mortgage Loan" means a loan that is Federally-Aided (as defined in Section 11 of the 
Act) or a loan or grant made or to be made by the Authority to the Sponsor for the construction, 
rehabilitation, acquisition and/or pennanent financing of a housing project, and secured by a mortgage on 
the housing project. 

F. "Sponsor" means Winston Commons Limited Dividend Housing Association Limited 
Partnership, a Michigan limited partnership, and any entity that receives or assumes a Mortgage Loan. 

G. "Utilities" means charges for gas, electric, water, sanitary sewer and other utilities 
furnished to the occupants that are paid by the housing project. 

SECTION 4. Class of Housing Projects. 

It is determined that the class of housing projects to which the tax exemption shall apply and for which a 
service charge shall be paid in lieu of such taxes shall be housing projects for Low Income Persons and 
Families that are financed with a Mortgage Loan. It is further determined that Winston Commons is of this 
class. 

SECTION 5. Establishment of Annual Service Charge. 

The housing project identified as Winston Commons and the property on which will be located shall be 
exempt from all ad valorem property taxes from and after the commencement of construction or 
rehabilitation. The City acknowledges that the Sponsor and the Authority have established the economic 
feasibility of the housing project in reliance upon the enactment and continuing effect of this Ordinance, 
and the qualification of the housing project for exemption from all ad valorem property taxes and a paymeut 
in lieu of taxes as established in this Ordinance, Therefore, in consideration of the Sponsm's offer to 
construct and operate the housing project, the City agrees to accept payment of an annual service charge 
for public services in lieu of all ad valorem property taxes. Subject to receipt of a Mortgage Loan, the 

· annual service charge shall be equal to 6 % of the Annual Shelter Rent actually collected by the housing 
project during each operating year. 

SECTION 6. Contractual Effect of Ordinance. 

Notwithstanding the provisions of section 15(a)(5) of the Act to the contrary, a contract between the City 
and the Sponsor with the Authority as third party beneficiary under the contract, to provide tax exemption 
and accept payments in lieu of taxes, as previously described, is effectuated by enactment of this Ordinance. 



SECTION 7. Limitation on the Payment of Annual Service Charge. 

Notwithstanding Section 5, the service charge to be paid each year in lieu of taxes for the prut of the housing 
project that is tax exempt but which is occupied by other than low income persons or families shall be equal 
to the full amount of the taxes which would be paid on that portion of the housing project if the housing 
project were not tax exempt. 

SECTION 8. Payment of Service Charge. 

The annual service charge in lieu of taxes as dete11nined under this Ordinance shall be payable in the srune 
mrumer as general property taxes are payable to the City and distributed to the several units levying the 
general property tax in the same proportion as prevailed with the general property tax in the current calendar 
year. The annual payment for each operating year sball be paid on or before July l '1 of the operating year. 
Collection procedures shall be in accordance with the provisions of the General Property Tax Act (1893 
PA206, as runended; MCL 211.1, et seq.). 

SECTION 9. Duration. 

This Ordinru1ce shall remain in effect and shall not terminate so long as: (i) the Winston Commons housing 
project has commenced construction on the fifty-four (54) residential units on the property within two (2) 
years of the effective date of this Ordinance; and (ii) a) the Mortgage Loan remains outstanding and unpaid; 
and b) the housing project remains subject to income and rent restrictions under the LJHTC Program but in 
no case longer than sixteen (16) years from the date of the certificate of occupancy issued by the City for 
the housing project. 

SECTION 10. Severability. 

The various sections and provisions of this Ordinance shall be deemed to be severable, and should any 
section or provision of this Ordinance be declared by any comt of competent jurisdiction to be 
unconstitutional or invalid the same shall not affect the validity of this Ordinance as a whole or any section 
or provision of this Ordinance, other than the section or provision so declared to be unconstitutional or 
invalid. 

SECTION 11. Inconsistent Ordinances. 

All ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent or in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinru1ce are 
repealed to the extent of such inconsistency or conflict. 

Section 12. Effective Date. 

This Ordinance shall become effective on ----~2018, as provided in the City Charter. 

By: 

CITY CLERK 

W:\Clients\City of Pontiac\PlLOT Ordinances MSHDAHousing\Orrlinance - Winston Commons -V04 9.07.18.docx 



MUNICIPAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

THIS MUNICIPAL SERVICES AGREEMENT entered into this __ day of ___ ~ 
2018 between WINSTON COMMONS LIMITED DMDEND HOUSING ASSOCIATION 
L1\1ITED PARTNERSHIP, a Michigan limited pminersbip of 500 South Front Street, I 0th Floor, 
Columbus;Ohio 43215, (hereinafter referred to as the "OWNER") and City of Pontiac, a Michigan 
municipal corporation, of 47450 Woodward Avenue, Pontiac Michigan 48342 (hereinafter refe1Ted 
to as the "CITY"). 

RECITALS 

A. The OWNER intends to purchase and develop a housing project for low to moderate 
income families, to be known as Winston Commons, financed in part by Low Income 
Housing Tax Credits (LJHTC), administered by the Michigan State Housing 
Development Authority (MSHDA) on· ]and legally described on Exhibit "A", 
(hereinafter referred to as the "PROJECT"). 

B. The OWNER desires to guarantee that certain municipal services will be provided to 
the PROJECT during the term that the Payment in Lieu of Taxes (hereinafter referred . 
to as the "PILOT'') Ordinance for this PROJECT is in place, such municipal services 
to exclude normal water, sewer, mid other utility charges as well as special 
assessment charges (which must be paid separately and at duly established rates) and 
similar charges and to include only: 

1. Emergency services, including police and ambulance (at normal published 
rates) and fire service specifically administered through the CITY; 

2. Other miscellaneous services as may, from time to time, be mutually agreed 
to for the benefit of the PROJECT; 

3. Said municipal services shall be provided in the customary way, in a 
competent and workmanlike m=er, and in accordance with all laws, rules 
and regulations of the United States of America, State of Michigan, County 
of Oakland, and City of Pontiac or other applicable jurisdictions or bodies. 

(All of the above collectively referred to as "Municipal Services") 

. AGREEMENT 

The parties agree as follows: 

Page I of3 



1. The payment for Municipal Services shall be computed as follows: Thirteen 
Thousand Dollars ($13,000) will be paid concurrent with the annual PILOT payment 
for Winston Connnons. Each year the annual MSA payment shall be increased per 
the published Consumer Price Index for all products Midwest region. The maximum 
yearly adjustment shall be 3 %. 

2. Payment for Municipal Services shall commence at the time the first PILOT payment 
is made and will remain in effect for as long as a payment-in-lieu-of-taxes ordinance 
is in place for the project. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Municipal Services Agreement is executed as of the day 
and year first written above. 

WITNESSES: WINSTON COMMONS LIMITED 
DIVIDEND HOUSING ASSOCIATION 
LIMITED PARTNERSHIP, A Michigan 
Limited Partnership 

By: WINSTON COMMONS GP, LLC, 
An Ohio limited liability company 
Its General Partner 

By: Woda Cooper General Partner, LLC 
An Ohio limited liability company 
Its Sole Member 

By: Woda Cooper Connnunities, LLC 
An Ohio limited liability company 
Its Sole Member 

By: ___________ _ 

David Cooper Jr., Vice President & 
Associate General Counsel 

CITY OF PONTIAC 

By. ____________ _ 

Its: City Manager. 

Page 2 of3 



EXHIBIT A 

ASSESSORS SUED NO I To Be Completed 

Page3 of3 



Development Agreement 
{69 Douglas Street - Winston Commons) 

This Development Agreement (the "Agreement") is executed and effective this __ Day of August 

2018, between the CITY OF PONTIAC (the "City"), a Michigan municipal corporation, and Winston 

Commons Limited Dividend Housing Association Limited Partnership (the "Owner"), a Michigan limited 

partnership. 

WHEREAS, the Owner is constructing a 54 unit, townhouse affordable housing development at 69 

Douglas Street, in the City of Pontiac; and 

WHEREAS, the Owner wishes to utilize Payment in Lieu of Taxes as well as the MSHDA LIHTC program; 

NOW THEREFORE, the Owner has requested a Payment In Lieu of Taxes (PILOT) from the City and other 

considerations, which the City is willing to provide so long as the following terms and conditions as noted 

below are agreed upon and adhered to for the length of the PILOT. 

Terms & Conditions 

In consideration for the foregoing, Owner hereby agrees as follows: 

1. No Preemption. Unless otherwise provided for specifically herein, this Agreement shall not be 

deemed to waive, preempt or make unnecessary any applicable municipal or governmental 

processes. This includes, but is not limited to zoning, variances, brownfield and economic 

incentives, assessments or fees and that Owners and/or Users are required to submit and 

participate for any appropriate process as provided in the City's ordinances, (ity Charter, 

including any applicable City Commission(s) and City Council matters and processes. 

2. Jobs. Owner shall make all reasonable efforts to use Pontiac contractors and subcontractors, as 

well as hire Pontiac residents. Owner shall also establish an internship or apprenticeship program 

focused on the education of Pontiac residents. Owner has entered a memorandum of 

understanding (MOU) [Exhibit A] with HerCo.Org, LLC to provide 15 "ready to work" Section 3 (to 

be known as apprentices) at the Winston Commons construction site. 

3. Notification of Transfer. Within a 48-hour period of its occurrence, Owner must notify City in 

the event of a transfer of general partnership or of ownership of the building. 

4. Management Notification. The Owner shall provide the City and the Building Official with the name 
and address of the Management Company and the name and direct contact information (phone and 

email) of the Management Company's primary Manager. Should Management company fall into poor 

standing with the City, Operator will be required to provide a monthly report to the Mayor's 



City of Pontiac 
Development Agreement 

office outlining each violation and the timeline and process for amending said violations. Poor 
standing is ·defined, but not limited as three or more code enforcement citations written for the same 
violation, with no action taken to rectify matter. 

5. Annual Review. Rental Inspection Certification shall be conducted on an annual basis. The City's 

Building Safety division shall hold an Annual Review of all ordinance violations with the 

. Management Company. 

6. Vacancy. Vacancy rate shall be reported to City, for the preceding year and on a monthly basis, 

at time of Annual Review. 

7. Security. Management Company must develop and maintain a municipally approved security 

plan. At the time of Annual Review, Owner must also provide the City with the latest incident 

report from the Sheriffs office. The City shall decide whether the security plan shall be amended. 

8. Maintenance Reserve. Owner will maintain a reasonable maintenance reserve, and will provide 

a proforma of that account at Annual Review. 

9. Resident Council. The management company is to assist renters with the establishment of a 

Resident Council. 

10. Compliance with Applicable Regulations. Owner hereby agrees to cause its respective Property 

to comply with all local, State and Federal regulations applicable to such Property, as may be 

amended. 

11. Term. This Agreement shall correspond to the term of the PILOT agreement as approved by the. 

Pontiac City Council. The PILOT approval for this project shall be contingent upon the MSHDA 

award of the LIHTC program for this development. 

12. Notices. All notices or communications required by this Agreement may be delivered either in

person, or by registered mail to parties listed below: 

To the City: 

City of Pontiac 

47450 Woodward Avenue 

Pontiac, Ml 48342 

Attention: Deputy Mayor 

2 



City of Pontiac 
Development Agreement 

With Copy To: 

To the Owner: 

City of Pontiac 

Attention: Building Official 

47450 Woodward Avenue 

Pontiac, MI 48342 

Attention: Building Official 

Woda Cooper Development, Inc. 
500 S. Front Street, 10th Floor 
Columbus,.Ohio43215 
Attention: Maia Boitano 

13. Binding Effect. This Agreement shall be binding upon the parties hereto and upon their 

respective permitted successors and assigns. 

·14. Conditions of Breach and Costs. Upon finding of breach pursuant to legal action, the Owner shall 

be responsible for all costs and fees associated with such action, including all actual attorney's 

fees. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be duly executed as of the 

date first written above. 

3 

OWNER: 

Winston Commons Limited Dividend 

Housing Association Limited Partnership, a 

Michigan limited partnership 

By: -----------
Name: Maia P. Boitano 

Title: Vice President and Associate 

General Counsel 



City of Pontiac 
Development Agreement 

4 

CITY: 

CITY OF PONTIAC 

A Michigan municipal corporation 

Hon. Deirdre Waterman 
Mayor 



City of Pontiac 
Development Agreement 

EXHIBIT A 

HERCO 
Memorandum of Understanding 

5 



WODA COOPER COMPANIES 

Augusl 20, 2018 

Phyllis Watson-Loudermill 
HerCO.ORO, U-C 
2964 Lakesbqre Drive, W 604 
Muskegon, Michigan 4944 i · 

Re: Intent to PuNhase: 

D~ar Ms. Louderm.ill, 

ThJs LeUer of Jnkllt is issued lb.is 20'' day ofAj!gust, 2(Jl 8 by and between HerCO'.ORd. LL4 
(hereinnJkr reforred lo as "fforCO''.), and the W-0da Cooper Development, Inc., \vhose address: is 500 
· S. Front Street, 10th Floor, Columbus, Ohio 43215 {hereinafter referred to as the "Company"). i 

The O:impany is pleased 10 extend the following Letter o!lntent to.enter into o Reform! Agreeinent 
fur Section 3 ,vorket for Winston Commons; iocated ilt 69 Douglas Street, Pontiac,Michignn 48342: 

1'erms: 

Contingencies: 

The Company desires to pay One 11iousand Dc>llars ($1,000.00) (the 
"Referral Fee'') for e,1ch Section 3 worker (to be known as ' 
apprentices) supplied and ma11agcd by HerCO throughout . 
constniction of\Vinston Commons. HerCO's responsil,ility wiU be 
to sour<;e and oversee work of each apprentice throug1iput !he tenure 
of cqrtstruction \lll behalf ofWpda Cooper Development, Inc. 

1} The apprentices will be supplied from either the Trading:Placcs 
apprentice,progrnm or from the City of Pontiac neighbor~oods. 

2) The total umount of workers supplied will not exceed i'iffeen (15) 
workers. . : 

3) Two (2) a\,prentices will he supplied to General Contnicfor and the 
rernninde( will be supplied to suhcontractoni who will utili7..<:· the 
apprentiCQ workers. 

Referral Agreement; The Company and HerCO will ent~r into a Referral Agreement nn later: than 
D,x;ember3 l, 2018. 



Agreed and Accepted: 

Title: __ fw.''_1 _~_,,-_· ___ _ 

The C'-0mj)any: 
Wodll Cooper Development, Inc. 

1:~11 
~et°' HiGHJ; tll-.1/JJ,HIU 

(ifH(ES -kOCA [£1) IN UtO~Gtli, i/ro;\'INll.., H-¥tlKU, ilJ\Ri'iM'O, r,~;o,i(JA.-'i, OltiOAN{!Vll{lS/Nii\ · 



INSTO 
SITE LOCATION MAP 

69 DOUG~!::> 5TREE.i 
PONTIAC.. Ml 46e.4.2 

" 

~~tZlCN 
,~,uov<-

PCI DESIGN GROUP, INC. 
_,,,.,.,.,_,,.,,... ...... ,.,_ .. __, 

500 SOUTH FRONT STREET SUITE 975 
COLUMBUS, OHlO 43215 

C1.0 

C1.1 

S1.0 

$1.1 

S1.2 

S1.3 

S1.4 

A1.0 

AU 
A1.2 

A1.3 

A1.4 

A1.S 

A1.6 

A1,7 

A1.8 

A1.9 

A1.10 

A1.11 

A1.12 

A1.13 

A1.14 

A2,0 

A2.1 

A2,2 

A2.3 

A2A 

FAMILY 
HOUSING 

co 
DRAWING INDEX 

COVERSHEET 

PROJECT DATA SHEET 

SITEPI.AN 

SITE LANDSCAPE PLAN 

SITE LIGHTING PlAN 

SITE LIGHTING CUT SHEET 

SITE DETAILS 

BUILDING A PLANS 

SUILOING A STREET ELEVATION 

BUllOING B PLAN$ 

8Ull.DJNG B STReET ELEVATION 

SUlLOlNG C PLANS &STREET El.EVATION 

BUILDING O ?LAN$ 

BUlLOlNG D STREET ELEVATION 

8Ull01NG E ?LANS 

BU!LOlNG E STREET ELEVATION 

BUlLOlNG F PLANS 

BUJLOlN G F STREET ELEVATION 

SUJLO)NG G PLAN & STREET ELEVATION 

BUILO!NG H Pl.ANS 

BUlLO!NG H FRONT ELEVATION 

COMMUNITY BUILDING PLAN Ii ELEVATION 

ONE BEDROOM UNIT PLAN &ACCESSIBLE PLAN 

TWO BEDROOM TOWNHOUSE UN!l" PLANS 

THREE BEDROOM TOWNHOUSE UNIT PLANS 

iWO BEDROOM ACCESSIBLE UNIT PLAN 

THREE BEDROOM ACCESSIBLE UNIT Pl.AN 

COVERSHEET I 0>-0::,18 I 

M 
OAKLAND COUNTY 

PONTIAC, Ml 
DEVELOPER 

WODACOOPER 
DEVELOPMENT, INC. 

OWNER 
WINSTON COMMONS 

LIMITED DIVIDEND 
HOUSING ASSOCIATION 
LIMITED PARTNERSHIP 

ARCHITECT 
PC! DESIGN GROUP, INC. 

••il.ltC"liWi<l 

WINSTON COMMONS 
69 DOUGLAS STREET 

PONTIAC, Ml 48342 
C1.0 



SITE DEVELOPMENT DATA 
ADORESS: 64 OOUGLAS STRE.ET 

PONTIAC Ml 
PARC.EL JU: 
SITE ARl:!A: 15B.OS2.'rl S.F. "'3.b3ACRE5 
ZONING: 

-- ·c.URRENT . R·S MU.LTTIPLE FA~u..Y"OV'!i:.LLING 
NOC.HANG!:. 

PROPOSED U'SE: S4 0V'{EL1..IN(;, UNITS 

DENSITY: 14,.e,e, UNITS/ACRe: +/• 

PAftl<.lNG-: Rl;;Gl:UlRE1'@ 1.1/BR• 11"1 SP TOTAJ... PROVIDJ!D • 120 SP 
SETSACte:::5; 5' FRONT, S' 51D'f! & 90' ~,-:. 
AREA Of PARC,f:.1.$: 6UILDIN6 F"ARCl:!l..;. 1$-l;,0$;2.cti 5,f, 
HEIGHT OF BU1Li5f1.:rG::' 1 & 2 - STORYTOv,fNHO'DSES· 11' FT•/- TO iIAVE. 

vse GROLJP: 
GONSTRUCT. TYPE:: 

STATE BUl1..DIN6 CODE 

~-:3 RESIDENTIAL (FAMIL. Y OC.C.UPANCY) 
5f!. !,LAO ON 6RADe, Y"IOOD f'AAMe 

GURRENTZONING 

.,~,Rrgl,,.I 

~ ... , .. 
, .. e;~OUP 

PCI DESIGN GROUP, INC. 
500 SOUTH FRONT STREET SUITE 975 

COLUMBUS, OHJ04321$ 

FAMILY 
HOUSING 

,..,.,.....»i,o<:i---..-.1 ..... ,~ ... -

RESIDENTIAL UNIT DATA 
_?,Utl:.Pl~§!_ 1 • Af_ARTI-i.t:.NI 
UNIT I <>ROSS. NeT 
1Yl'O VNlT A~E,l.(l;lf") AREA(SF) "' H2 i"" A4 <05 ... D1 
i-,- 7"7!"E·rrJl0oM 4 4 " • 26EOROOM •,oO , 1 " 

, 4 , 

' 3Bt;OROOM - 2 
4 1 0EO~OM ACCESSIBLE .... • 
" :2 BEDROOM AGCESSlfH. ' 100:2 sso 
• 3 01'.!.0'ROOM ACC,E$5ISLE"' 1155- 1100 1 ' ' • 3 • • , 0 

BUILDING AREA CALCULATIONS 
BUILDING AREAS 

NO 1Si' FLR 2ND !"l.R TOIAL 
'BUJLDIN& P-1 1 -48.9,~ 2040 69'15" 
auJLOIN& 14-.Z 1 3131 SS'TO 1501 
61,.llLD(NG E-:l 1 441b 40/;0 355b 
BUit.DiNG A-4 1 5410 $060 ••!10 
BUILDING C.-5 1 :21$2 0040 41"12 
aull • .t)IN6 G~i, 1 3450 0 3450 
6UU-1'1Ne.1'-1 1 40<!2 0040 . .,., 
BUILDI N<v a.e, 1 5542 5100 10642 
COMMUN11Y BUILDING- 1 1411> 0 1416 

6RO$S 5a Fi' 01" BUlLDJNG q 33::)!M• 21'130 55:31& 

•NOT:e: LOT C,OVEAAG-e"' 6L.DG. GROUND Pt.OOR AREA'" 5!;\S,Be, S-.F. 

PROJECT DATA & 
Afl.EA CALCULATIONS l,~:01·1 WINSTON COMMONS 

69 DOUGLAS STREET 
PONTIAC, 1';!11 48342 

"iii,,-.;·,.;;;:. 

•• ff'OTAL. 
I UNIT 
' , 

" , 31 
2 • 

' 2 
' 1 

' 1 
1u · s4 

';""'If 

C1.1 

______ J 



l33cllS S\1'78000 \ 
0 

• 
• -~ 

' 

I 
• 

• 



~ 

\ 
LA.NDSC,,A.PE LEGEND 
"1-1.l,..,l,.t<.t)~C.,..J>-IN61"111.1.. i-r?:cr C.IT'f ZONIN6' 
AND l.,O.Np<'~ Rl¼IU1~Mia:=. $1-!!WOC 
ARE NOT 61-!0i,,a,,, "r1'11:!e1'r'pes.~~ A)li:~ 
MATU!l!tt f>IZ!ls, &l"llCI!!~ Ai'll:7 "ttl,l,,L 
~1/i),IT NU. se C,f!Tf.Ftl,<JN ei;, ll"I" GO[n.l. 
FINAl. l,J,.Nt,e,c;,,l"e 1"1-N,I TO ei;: l"Rr;f'A~I;) r,y' 
v,N~,..,.eAP:C,o-l!Tt:G.T 

~ 01:C-\DIJOLJ&.lJ<Rc,e~)!w l".-.in:rNV 11,. f>..W:,t: 1'Rt:e. 

A O~IC,UO!)b,~~-
~ Ora,N,',MCN"!'A!. ~c. 

• ="-"Nial.I<• l>LJl't'!!K i'fl"I! 
'l"Rr;i; OR fl.HfalJ~, TQ 01! N.ON<lo 
"l.LS'e.ti;>J;.YAlo:t,$f!Tf!J,C.J:: 
l"~l"C!<:,-,-UNl';f,, 

L, •. &r- '"I..+ ,, ·~•·# ~ 0 25' 50' 100' 

W SCALE: 1 ~ = 50' -0~ 

;;;;;;;:.;,~,;;;;r,;; 

-----------
\"\,\.>RON s,R~~' 0 

MECHANIC STREET 

'~~.-,~, ~--.. 

PCI DESIGN GROUP, INC. I 
500 SOUTH FRONT STREET SUITE 975 

COLUMBUS, OHIO 43215 """"""'"''""'°""'"Q_, ...... ., ... ,,,_ 

~"'"" {#111><)1,1~ FAMILY 
HOUSING 

SCHeMATIC 
SITE LANDSCAPE PLAN 1~:.,./ •e""<CT,w,ii, 

WINSTON COMMONS 
69 DOUGLAS STREET 

PONTIAC, Ml 48342 

tu 
ll.l 

~ 
5 
C) 
::) 
0 9 I ·Cl 

d \ 

""""'· 
s1.1 



--------~ 
--

~ 

m :CALE, 1"; 50'-0" 

25' 50' 

"''""'"""'"'-"' 

S °""" PC! DESIGN GROUP, INC. I FAMILY 
G 

11 

0 V ~ 500 SOUTH FRONT STREET SUITE 975 HOUSING 
COLUMBUS, OHIO 43215 -~,. ..... .....,,,_,~.,·-~·- SITE LIGHTING PLAN /,~,::,101 

·--··-·-·-- -----.,-,.--. 

0 

WINSTON COMMONS 
89 DOUGLAS STREET 

PONTIAC, Ml 48342 

. ..... _--,-,--,-,•. 

·,,;;,...,-,..,-

tu 

i 
~ 
0 

C1 
\ ii 

! ,, 

Sl.2 

:::> 
0 
0 

;-"-.•-~;-



_,_,-_--_-_______ ---=- ,-,-:--,-----~-

" ' • • 

I ,, 

,,.,,,.,,,, 

l~ 



~0(~10>1 ,,..,o~o~~ 

7'-0" 6'•.9:" it 
(-¥ ::,,c::, He:A'h' 

I 
OUTY VINYi. 

CONCRCTI: WALK OR FeNCC J>OST 
RAMr- eLoPe,, ~" .i. ix , 1,.,. 01...._ r>OsT-1 111 9 
CROllS > /"OOTlN~ T 

,.~> -G 

ii 111 ~L( ____ ~!=:~---JJ~' 1111 ti l 
11•-0" 11 II -----,,-- -" 'I 'I YA', I I g OUl.1P!:lTe:R t,'I' OT\-1\';1«, ~ 

'b•~1r. ~~ 
l~---------... ==ca=o,=""~I 3 
IIVCRI!'"'I' DUh!?i;TCR l:ll'ZC OFII <11 

:: T!(MH :o%S'.F A»D :: ~ 

ii 111 I J !! eNCL:=.:_r~:~~~R:i I 111 ~ 

1-,,..0" "!1.0'•0• >< !;" 
CONC. -+000 PSl 
APRON W/ 

f'ARl:INl;I ?>LOCI::__,/ ~ f' 

'• 
:~ 

<)i 

~ 

ti)(~ WWM 
CNCl.OflUR INSTALi. --, /,'===;::==j 
TI:NSIONIN CA.bl.CS OR ~/ ' 

H~~1]1Re v1~vtAVI:: 
gi~~o TO ~TJ-~NI<: f".eNCC 

THRC,.OCO ROCS WITH 
TURNl>UC><: S ON &ACl::!;.IDC 
OP OATt kAMC TO 
enGURe e UARC, LCVf.:l., 
ANO Pl.UM I " 
Cl-lAMl"CR !:NO& ------,, a 

Ne-Tc, 01:t:: °'11:CT ...00.1 l"Qll 
I..QCATIQl'I', 

DETAIL 
1/411=1'-0 11 

bl'-(>• 

® 
DUMPSTER ENCLOSURE 

PCI DESIGN GROUP, INC. 
500 SOUTH FRONT STREET SUITE 975 

COLUMBUS, OHIO 43215 

FAMILY 
HOUSING 

·"'"'"""'" 
SITE DET Al LS 

.-,~"""""'"""'"-...1"""'"""'""--' 

t 
e•-~• 

- 'vffif'y :j' 
5 ... 0~ ~ ,. 

ACM ALUM. 
l"ACC WlTH 
RA!$t!O l.tTTCRD 
ANb VlNY1.. 
Gl'tAPHJC9 ANO 
AL.UM. TOP/>t:!t 
e.',' $JGN VE:NOOR 

CQUAL. HOUZ!lNGI 

g?g:i-g~m• TO 
SIGN F-ACe 

MIN. 1;:t'I, 
CMU O.ASC 

weep Hou: 
ill ~2" 

CONTINUOUS 
eAse 
FLASHlNG 

WINSTON 
...COMMONSn 

-y:~============1:=:;;.z 
H II 11..if 

~ ~:: 
"" 

bit ~:ti 
> 

718• O.::>. 
S-CHCOULC 40 
GALVANJZCO 
Pl,-.C COLUMN 
ANCHOReO 
lNSJDe bASe 
!TIP. ZI 

CUt.T:JReO 
8TONC CAP 
s1.01>eo 
Olt!ClC. bASC:: 

·: APPROX:0rtA01: 

t·~ ' '. :.. :. ::/ .. (_> :~! 
.,,. "•i: / ~~•-i:NM :)~~," 

.. •~· ~ i Of:f=f> [~·;;:: .. >~ -~ :.-.-.,>~: ':,, ~...:::·:·---'.] ~g~~~JePAO 

NOTe: S.IQN Vt::NOOlt TO PROVlOe COMPL.C:TI: 5HOr
ORAWING$. SHOP PRAWlNGS TO INCL.UO~ DlMl:NSION&, 
size, l"'ONT YYPI= ANO 1.0CATION OP At..t.. Lf;TTE:RlNG, 
ANO At.I.. cot.OR AND MATeR!At.. &Pt'!Cit"'ICATtONO. 

@ DETAIL 
~/81lo:1I-0II 

PROJECT SIGN ELEVATION 

-,u,.;.--,,.;:, 

[,,~:,,,[ WINSTON COMMONS 
59 DOUGLAS STREET 

PONTIAC, Ml 48342 

·-
S1-4 



~DaatGII 'iiai1"~0U~ 

10'•4" 

I 
1 lr:==Jl 
I 

I 

L!!e _ -

PCI DESIGN GROUP, INC. 
500 SOUTH FRONT STREET SUITE 975 

COLUMBUS, OHIO 43215 _,...,,....,,,_.,.., .......... ...,,,,,_~ .. 

SECOND FLOOR PLAN 
SCALE:&-•" 1'..Q 2ND FLOOR AREA= 3,060 S.f. 

120'-8" 

10'•4" 

Fr/2;il----f-,._--,c 

~ 

I 

1.1 i 
I i: • 

I 

- ~ 

[I,_-·-•-·.'!! [I,__,_._ !!I 
FIRST FLOOR PLAN 

SCALE~"=- 1'..Q 1ST FLOOR AREA3.410 S.F. TOT AO SLOG= 6.412 S.F. 

= 

I 
FAMllY I 

HOUSING 
BUILDING A PLANS 

1, .. ~~181 
WINSTON COMMONS 

69 DOUGLAS STREET 
PONTIAC, Ml 48342 

Al.O 



~IH.S!GN 1iJiil <\!>OU!• 

PCI DESIGN GROUP, INC. 

<-••~''"~""'--1 ... ,.,,--.., 
SOC SOUTH FRONT STREET SUITE G75 

COLUMBUS, OHIO 43215 

FRONT ELEVATION 
SCALE °f!"-= 1'-0 

""o.&cT...,_ 

FAMILY 
HOUSlNG 

BUILDING A 
STREET ELEVATION I , •. ,..201, I 

CODED NOTES 
1. 30 YEAR ARCHITECTURAL S1YLE 

ANTI-FUNGAL SHINGLES. 
2. FIBERGLASS INSULATED ENTRY 

DOORS. . 
3. ENERGY STAR RATED WlNDOWS. 
4. VENTED SOFFITS AND RIDGE 

VENTS. 
5. ALUM. GUTTERS & DOWNSPOUTS. 
6. PRE-FINISHED FASCIA & SOFFITS. 
7. FISER CEMENT SIDING. 
8. 4" FACE BRICK VENEER. 

'"""' WINSTON COMMONS A 1.1 6G DOUGLAS STREET 
PONTIAC, Ml 48342 



I 
I 
1! JI 1 I.!:!! Ii 

Mi;ai~;-,;w,-,1.;:i'iiilij" 

~o~,l<IN ,.-~11:0IJP PCI DESIGN GROUP, INC. 

..,.,....,,.,..,, ...... -........... ,.,, ......... 
500 SOUTH FRONT STREET SUITE 975 

COLUMBUS, OHIO 43215 

sc.o.u:;¼'• 1•..i WC F~OO'l/\f{,;,,• •,10I) ((.F. 

_!00~~· 

L'--! J 
FIRST FLOOR PLAN 

6CN.e il,• • 1•-,1 18T f1..00R MEIi • ~ S.F. TOTAL 131.00 ARi:,. • Hl,(!02 ~.~. 

FAMILY 
HOUSING 

BUILDING B PLANS I ,0-0~2010 I WINSTON COMMONS 
69 DOUGLAS STREET 

PONTIAC, Ml 48342 

. 

-....... ,,.""' 

Al.2 



~ :> le .'IC I (I. N '.iai1 <11'10\!,. 

PCI DESIGN GROUP, INC. 

-"'""""" ............... ,...,,,. ......... 
500 SOUTH FRONT STREET SUITE 975 

COLUMBUS, OHI0.43215 

FAMILY 
HOUSING 

ijr;:AU;Ti"• \'-0 

BUILDING B 
STREET ELEVATION J,0-0~2D181 

CODED NOTES 
1. 30 YEAR ARCHITECTURAL STYLE 

ANTI-FUNGAL SHINGLES. 
2. FIBERGLASS INSULATED ENTRY 

DOORS. 
3. ENERGY STAR RATED WINDOWS. 
4. VENTED SOFFITS ANO RIDGE 

VENTS. 
5. ALUM. GUTTERS & DOWNSPOUTS. 
6. PRE-FINISHED FASCIA & SOFFITS. 
7. FIBER CEMENT SIDING. 
8. 4" FACE BRICK VENEER. 

,.fc~ "1:'~tt;,:~-~ ~"'"-.i, 
.,,, .,.~~y 
......... ~ ..... -

:;.•.-o:..-..l:.~~. 
-. -~;-. 

•:-.~;-

WINSTON COMMONS 
69 DOUGLAS STREET 
• PONTIAC, Ml 48342 

Al.3 



~t>rii!l,N ,.__.1'1~0!Jl' PCI DESIGN GROUP, INC. 

C.0"""'"'"'...,_'""'°"~""'M""'""'-

500 SOUTH FRONT STREET SUITE 975 
COLUMBUS, OHIO 43215 

·- ·-·-----·-------------

77.'•<:t'_ 

SECOND FLOOR PLAN 
!iCAU:i·-1~ ::ii,ir;,r"or;,r:AAtA-~,Q,40,;,F, 

FIRST FLOOR PLAN 
11c,,.u::1r-1w wr ~LOOI? ARGA-~on.•. TOTA(.BUJOAl<tA~",oco:..I'. 

FAMILY 
HOUSING 

ijCAl.r,,k'•l'--0 

BUILDING C PLANS & 
STREET ELEVATION I ,.o:~,1. I 

--------·--·-··· 

-'I"""' 

COOED NOTES 
1. 30 YEAR ARCHITECTURAL STYLE 

ANTI-FUNGAL SHINGLES. 
2. FIBERGLASS INSULATED ENTRY 

DOORS. 
3, ENERGY STAR RATED WINDOWS. 
4. VENTED SOFFlTS ANO RIDGE 

VENTS. 
5. ALUM. GUTTERS & DOWNSPOUTS. 
6. PRE-FINISHED FASCIA & SOFFITS. 
7. FIBER CEMENT SIDING. 
8. 4"FACE BRICK VENEER. 

--~;,,-,.,-

WINSTON COMMONS 
69 DOUGLAS STREET 

PONTIAC, Mt 48342 

1>'1:1:1' 

Al.4 



1BRTH 

~ 

72'-0" 

- - - - ~TIIT"!-;- -::.__ -_ - - 7 - l 11' \_ 

~ 

SECOND FLOOR PLAN 
SCALEi• = 1'-0 2ND FLOOR.AREA =2,040 S.F. 

107•-a~ 

1 ' 11.,.,, 'pq l 7lr71F~ J ii:i/'t;;,11ru ''iqj V/JJICJ?J @1~ir7 

·~ 

~--=. 

1.____. 
<=- ~ ~ . •---"' ___ ::J 

FIRST FLOOR PLAN 
SCALE~•"' 1'-0 1ST FLOOR AREA =4,B92S.F. TOTAl.. BLOG AREA= 6,932 $,F, 

"'"""""•-,.,.,.., 

~t>~l!<l'H 
~-OROUP 

PCI DESIGN GROUP, INC. I 
500 SOIJTH FRONT STREET SUITE 975 

COLUMBUS. OHJ043215 

FAMILY I 
HOUSING 

BUILDING D PLANS I 00-0,-~,. I WINSTON COMMONS 
69 DOUGLAS STREET 

PONTIAC, Ml 48342 c.,..,..,..,,. • ...,,,_,,a ... ,.~~..,,"'1~-

" " " 

Al.5 



~""'-" 'iliil'""<ll'" 
PCI DESIGN GROUP, INC. 

500 SOUTH FRONT STREET SUITE Q75 
COLUMBUS, OHIO 43215 

"'-"·"~-0-,,.,. ........ ...... 

FRONT ELEVATION 

FAMILY 

HOUSING 

SCALE:i':t"" 1'--0 

BUILDINGD 
STRffi ELEVATION [,~::,101 

CODED NOTES 
1. 30 YEAR ARCHITECTURAL STYLE 

ANTlwFUNGAL SHINGLES. 
2. FIBERGLASS INSULATEO'ENTRY 

DOORS. 
3. ENERGY STAR RATED WINDOWS. 
4. VENTED SOFFITS AND RIDGE 

VENTS. 
5. ALUM. GUTTERS & DOWNSPOUTS. 
6, PRE~FINISHED FASCIA & SOFFITS. 
7. FIBER CEMENT SIDING. 
8. 4" FACE BRICK VENEER. 

'"'"~'""' 
WINSTON COMMONS 

69 DOUGLAS STREET 
PONTIAC, Ml 48342 

Al.6 



101·4" 

I 
1IF=:IL 
I 
I 
L.[,, - -

Iha -

SECOND FLOOR PLAN 
SCALE £t = 1'-0 2ND FLOOR AREA= 4,080 S,F. 

11541•8" 

ii,__._._::!] 
FIRST FLOOR PLAN 

SCALEi" = 1'-0 1ST FLOOR AREA "4,476 S.F. TOTAL BLDG ARE• 6,556S.F • 

...... ,""'"'""'""''" 

~
""'" PC! DESIGN GROUP, INC. I 
"'oto u ~ 500 SOUTH rRONT STREET SUITE 975 

COLUMBUS, OHIO 43215 _ .. ,,,,o-....,_.._,...,..,,._ 

.,..,,.c;-.-,..,;; 

FAMILY I 
HOUSING 

BUILDING E PLANS l,~,:~,.I 
II!: ___ , 

-,~u\li"..;iifi 

WINSTON COMMONS 
69 DOUGLAS STREET 

PONTIAC, Ml 48342 I 

10'-4" 

~1 
I j1! 

=---=-- - ~ ~ 

""""n 

Al.7 



~1'(;100"""""" 

~1H,;IC1N , __ l<l>-Q.Vr 
PCl DESIGN GROUP, INC. 

~.,.,,.,.,., • ..,,<., ........... Al ... ,... .... .... 

500 SOUTH FRONT STREET SUITE 975 
COLUMBUS, OHIO 43216 

FAMILY 
HOUSING 

FRONT ELEVATION 
SCALE :,ii;,:•-' 1"--0 

BUILDING E 
STREET ELEVATION I 09-0~201' I 

CODEC NOTES 
1. 30 YEAR ARCHITECTURAL STYLE 

ANTI-FUNGAL SHINGLES. 
2. FIBERGLASS INSULATED ENTRY 

DOORS. 
3. ENERGY STAR RATED WINDOWS. 
4. VENTED SOFFlTS AND RlDGE 

VENTS. 
5. ALUM. GUTTERS & DOWNSPOUTS. 
6. PRE-FINISHED FASCIA & SOFFITS. 
7. FIBER CEMENT SIDING. 
8. 4" FACE BRICK VENEER. 

WINSTON COMMONS 
69 DOUGLAS STREET 

PONTIAC, Ml 46342 
Al.8 



72'·0'' 

a 
~ 

SECOND FLOOR PLAN 
SCALE 3/32''::: 1 '-0 2ND FLOOR AREA::: 2,040 S.F. 

{ __ _,~o-o _ ,• 

. :£Fi1ri0 I I Bri1ril . I I [irif-"44--i I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

"I I ~ I 
I 

I 
I 
I 
I 

28RHC 

I 
, 1 11-cli \? Ji;-- - - --
~--- - ____ :::,J 

~,.,.,oc:,o,.,w ... 

, o o ~ E _•_•_ :'.!J. --lL . -
-----

FIRST FLOOR PLAN 
SCALE3/32" = 1'--0 1STFLOOR AREA "'4,335 S.F. TOTAL BLDG AREA=S,375S.F, 

eh"'-'""""' 

~
'"'"' PCI DESIGN GROUP, INC. I 
"~ o u ~ 500 SOUTH FRONT STREET SUITE 975 

COLUMBUS. OHIO 43215 """"""'"""" --~-11,, ... ,.. ..... ~-
FAMILY I 

HOUSING 
BUILDING F PLANS 1~181 WINSTON COMMONS 

69 DOUGLAS STREET 
PONTIAC, Ml 48342 

Al.9 

1·1 

1~: 
::1 

iii 

ii 
:;• 

) 
JI 

;1: 



· . .,,.,: ::. 
-~ ... .:,, 1r.,» .. . 

,.._.,~;:, .. J" _ ..... ....,,. ... ..J 

--.... : c.,.:::: ,;"j_:(. .....-: • --.-;:: ... ":· "'.IJ:-~::-- .:;.~_ 
._y~----~•f<,1 ... .., 
~ i:."'1':•·~'"'"'·"µ_U,..,:,:.;., 

:..r;f 

~"""" ,__,(;"0<11' PC! DESIGN GROUP, INC. 

""''"'~"''"""'"'"' .. -· ........... _ .. 
500 SOUTH FRONT STREET SUITE 975 

COLUMBUS, OH!O 43215 

FAMILY 
HOUSING 

FRONT ELEVATION 
SCALE£''= 1'-0 

"' 

CODED NOTES 
1. $0 YEAR ARCHITECTURAL STYLE 

ANT(..FUNGAL SHlNGLES. 
2. FIBERGLASS lNSULA TEO ENTRY 

DOORS. 
3. ENERGY STAR RATED VV1NDOVVS. 
4. VENTED SOFFJTS AND RIDGE· 

VENTS. 
S. ALUM. GUTTERS & DO'-NNSPOUTS, 
6. PRE-FINISHED FASCIA & SOFFlTS. 
7. FIBER CEMENT SIDING. 
8. 4" FACE BRlCK VENEER. 

- ~ :..,:::,. 
--'<1&.. .. ~ ,l"llj,'. 

:::-2)}-:t~;":-~~--
.;_-... --":'.~ .,.--~-:,>'~~ .... --

• '{,~- .,:1-.., .... ....,.,z.,-::;· 
~ ~~~"-'~ 
~i~ r,,5;;_.~. 

~~f~-

BUILDING F 
STREET ELEVATION J,~~20181 WINSTON COMMONS Al.l 0 69 DOUGLAS STREET 

PONTIAC, Ml 48342 

i'.: 
} 

[t 



~ ... .,;,...:~ ..... .:,,,>t»¥ • 

y;:;;~!J!}i{~i 
·:::~ ~-..,~.., .. -::.,_.:r ,.,.:/-:: . 

.i--o~••;;,i,r:. "-....,~ " ·~ "'t:· ;t~:w '1-it ... V.gl"' :='[~ .f.,'; 

• ::~•~ --~';,,I . :-=•.,,,r • ... ~~'G,c.: 

1BRHC 1BRTH 

~ E> 

-" 

~°'"" ,__, (l,"(111(' 
PCI DESIGN GROUP, INC. 

c..,,.<ok:O>OoCO-.,,._,,I,.,,, __ _, 

500 SOVTH FRONT STREET SUITE 975 
COLUMBUS, OHIO 43215 

1~01~0'' 

1BRTH 111 18RTH II 1,1 II 1BRTH 
II 
a 
i. 

E> ~!~ ~ 
~,· 

FLOOR PLAN 
SCALE!)'l.( a.1'-0 TOTAL BLOG AREA ;;;4,718 S.F. 

SCALE$1f"'1'-0 

~ 

· FAMILY 
HOUSING 

BUILDING G PLAN & I I 
STREET ELEVATION oe-oe-201e 

~ 

~ 

CODED NOTES 
1. 30 YEAR ARCHITECTURAL STYLE 

ANTI-FUNGAL SHINGLES. 
2. FIBERGLASS INSULATED ENTRY 

DOORS. 
3. ENERGY STAR RATED WINDOWS. 
4. VENTED SOFFJTS AND RIDGE 

VENTS. 
5. ALUM. GUTTERS&. DOVVNSPOUTS. 
6. PRE-FINISHED FASCIA & SOFFlTS. 
7. FIBER CEMENT SIDING. 
B. 4" FACE BRICK VENEER. . . . 

:.. ... ~ ~;:... .... l>'_y. 
-"t.,.~-.;;-:.}~":"~ 

.i,•w ..f•t.w'".,I,;';.,...'.) :..," 
7x,v ·x.~~-';$.,~-" 
~ ~=. "',.,,.,-,,~-,.., --~,I'(, --;:_-. ~ . 

. ~ .... "'"jt"\; 
""&-:-:...~"

:,-'t.t'~"?:..,.1:-,: -
~~~~ ... 

WINSTON COMMONS A 1.11 69 DOUGLAS STREET 
PONTIAC, Ml 46342 



!1 rr 

I 
. ...., 

I 
I 

I 

28RTH 

it 1 m 2BRTH 

I [ 

~l>TillG/f ,_,C,IKQ\J~ PCI DESIGN GROUP, INC. 
500 SOUTH FRONT STREET SUITE 975 

COLUMBUS, OHIO 43215 
.,.,,...,.,.,,,0,,,.,1 ......... ..,,.,,..,,~.-

11~'·"" 

SECOND FLOOR PLAN 
SCALEj" = 1'-0 2ND FLOORAREA,,,3570 S,F, 

1161•4" 

~ a o ~ 
FIRST FLOOR PLAN 

lrM~I• 
~ 

SCALE:f:!-::: 1'·0 1STfLOOR AREA., 3,731 S.F. TOTAL BLOG AREA• 7,301 S.F. 
ii:oi"-,--

FAMILY I 
HOUSING 

BUILDING H PLANS 

,,.,., 

J,~~~181 WINSTON COMMONS 
69 DOUGLAS STREET 

PONTIAC. Ml 48342 

ft 
('. 

:;_ 

! 
(~ 

:; 

i·! 

IA1~12 



~l>J';~l(;t,1 '--1"'",:l\)~ 
PCI DESIGN GROUP, INC. 

"'"'"'~:,O,.,P(:IO,,.,,,n,,.-.1 .. ,..,.,.. •• _., 

500 SOUTH FRONT STREET SUITE 975 
COLUMBUS, OHIO 43215 

FAMILY 

HOUSING 
BUlLDING H 

STREET ELEV A TlON 

SCALE ;?,t"" 1'..0 

COOED· NOTES 
1. 30 YEAR ARCHITECTURAL STYLE 

ANTI-FUNGAL SHINGLES. 
2. FIBERGLASS INSULATED ENTRY 

DOORS. 
3. ENERGY STAR RATED Vv1NDOWS. 
4. VENTED SOFFITS AND RIOGE 

VENTS. 
5. ALUM. GUTTERS & DOWNSPOUTS, 
6. PRE~FINISHED FASCIA & SOFFITS. 
7. FJBER CEMENT SIDING. 
8, 4" FACE BRICK VENEER. 

10-20181 
WINSTON COMMONS Al.13 69 DOUGLAS STREET 

PONTIAC, Ml 48342 



CODED NOTES 
1. 30 YEAR ARCHITECTURAL STYLE 

ANTI-FUNGAL SHINGLES. 
2. FIBERGLASS INSULATED ENTRY 

DOORS. 
3. ENERGY STAR RATEDWJNDOVVS. 
4. VENTED SOFFITS ANO RIDGE 

VENTS. 
5. ALUM. GUTTERS & DOWNSPOUTS. 
6, PRE~FINlSHED FASCIA & SOFFITS. 
7. FIBER C81/JENT SIDING. 
8. 4" FACE BRICK VENEER. 

FRONT ELEVATION 

~l>[,IGr,J ,..-,0\IO<JP PCI DESIGN GROUP, INC. 

""-""""°°'""'o~..,_,._,,,..,...,.,._ 
500 SOUTH FRONT STREET SUITE 975 

COLUMBUS, OHIO43215 

FAMILY 
HOUSING 

'1, 
;, 
~ 

LAUNDRY 
141 S.F, 

. iil:J, 

e 

0 0 

321~411 

4 ~1~ 8 11 

= · 12•X121 

140 SF 

COMM\JNTD'. ROOM 
1- --···------488-.. S.-fi'r._.,,. ..••... 

MANGEMeNT = 160 S.F . 

• 0 

HEA!IH? 
WELLNess 

BQQM 
122> S,F" 

W-4't 

COMMUNITY e,urLD!NG 
TOTAL AReA "' -1413 Sf' 

"'""""""~ ··o;.r.; 

I COMMUNITY BUILDING I I 
PLAN & STREET ELEVATION 09-0s-201e 

WINSTON COMMONS 
69 DOUGLAS STREET 

PONTIAC, Ml 48342 

9 
;; 

9 
N 

Al.14 



I, 24'-QII 
1, . , . 

I' 

= STD 7 ' 15 SF 

' 
' ,, --

V " 
-'r<-

" / I 
I 

I 
I 

BEDROOM#1 
141 SF 

10'1'f" X 12'10" . I 
I 

I Ill\ ' 
I 

I 

I I 
) 

J i ' 
I :i=: • - " 
I 

. I I 

18 60 I cit 

H- \ , --H JJI, J 
I 

I +=- ' 
IL -

'¢ 

' i'-
"' 

~1 C _c 
91-411 , 141-a1I , 

, , 

ONE BEDROOM ACCESSIBLE UNIT PLAN 
SCAL~" = 1'..0" 

NET AREA = 634 S.F. 
GROSS AREA = 674 S.F. 

.,.°"""''c'"'®"'" '"""""""'"' 

~ 
~4'-U" 

:<.". Or MIC/f/. ,, I, ~ ._., 6, . 
' • Tl '1- DOUGLAS £. {t) 

C 
I". ~: WEATHERBY ] '¢t * ARCHITECT * STO (){{NO.* 

1SSF 
_! "o' 25457 _,1.$ 
lD ~/. C:i'-"'ow-a,>a•' -- . l-'1--

' "' ~ 
I 

~· 

' i'-

"' 

I 
I 

BEDROOM# 1 I 
141 SF I I 

~ 
10·11-x 12·10"' 

I 
I 

~ /lL I= ' I '¢ 
' I..! 

I I ' I~ ' 
' • l:,c 
' 
' 

I I 
I I 1-fo C.V-1t-e1-1er. / ~1 lcio c· .... 

I 

L 711 Ji 0:: -~ 0, 
I Iii- ' 

... .Lilli I l "1c-'· '. 
' ' 

' 

l:L . 
I, 141-8 11 

I, 91-411 I, , , I 

ONE BEDROOM UNIT PLAN 

'"""'""""" O.Tt; 

sCALE(lr .. 1·.o• 
NET AREA = 634 S.F. 

GROSS AREA = 674 S.F . 

WINSTON COMMONS 
~

""'"" PCI DESIGN GROUP, INC. I FAMILY 
1,1 ~o<t ~ 500 SOUTH FRONT STREET SUITE 975 HOUSING 

TWO BEDROOM I I 
TOWNHOUSE UNIT PLANS 09-06-2018 69 OOUGtAS STREET. 

PONTIAC, Ml 46342 
A2.0 

COLUMSUS. OHIO 43215 
-~,010""!0 __ ,,.._ .. __ , ' 

i!l 
j, 

j!j 

i) 

!' 



181-0 11 
I, 

181-QII 
Ir 

~ 
' OJ 

('J 

PATIO 
72. SF 

12'X6" 

I 

• ~ 
FIRST FLOOR 

' 

= 
st 
' 
"' ('J 

--' 

I' 

' 

, 

I 

, 

------------7-----

0 

D BEDRO M#2 
137 F 

13'9" 10' 

ID 

i-i-~-c:: I 

I ID 
~------ b --------

SECOND FLOOR 

lWO BEDROOM TOWNHOUSE UNIT 

S """' PCI DESIGN GROUP, INC. I 
'> ~ 0 (11' S00 SOUTH FRONT STREET SUITE 975 

COLUMBUS, OHIO 43215 
-~ ..... ~ •• ..,._.,_1,~,.,,... ........ 

FAMILY 
HOUSING 

SCALE-,~• "' 1 '--0'' 
GROSS AREA= 102D $.F. • NET AREA = 950 S.F. 

I 
TWO -=~;;OOM I ~-· I 

TOWNHOUSE UNIT PLANS 09-06-2018 

-,,.,..-,:,...,~._-

WINSTON COMMONS 
59DOUGLASSTREET 

PONTIAC, Ml 48342 

""";ii""~ 

~~-- .- ·' •.. ·, --.. -.--,-,-, . 

A2.1 



281-811 
V ,1' 

10 1-811 
. 

. {= 
1ai-011 ,, 

~ 

. . 
_=i 

18 1-0 11 

~-';;':° 
. 

1~· 
- - - - - - - - - - - -1::J_, ---J- • ti T7r 

, . 
1,!! 

d) " •o 
' 

0 
' N 

" 

lu "' I // 
~ - '] . I 

, I 

oo 
' I' lie, o n .n, I 

' -

' () I I 
I JI It:=::': < I;- I ' ,r 

I = 

d) 
' "' N 

c5 I~ 
' I~ 

I I 'i c 

~ u 'v\L 
1~~ 

I 5' 
0 

I N 011 1 

~I 

-' 

" I 
~ 

I 
~'-=~=28U 

FIRST FLOOR 

,;:.;•o~r~..-="' 

' 13 

i 

S °"'"' PCI DESIGN GROUP, INC. I 
G RO-UP 500 SOUTH FRONT STREET SUITE 975 

COLUMBUS, 0Hl043215 
""•-""'""'" .... ""'""' ...... "'ir ........... 

r 
i= ~I BEi ROOM# 

LJ 127SF f-
2'$"X 10' 

lj::::::::::::: 

. ~ 

I 
I 
I 

_l ' 
_j . r-,----r--------" 

I 
_ _l 

SECOND FLOOR 

THREE BEDROOM TOWNHOUSE UNIT 
SCALEj"=1'..0' 

GROSS AREA= 1176 S.F. • NET AREA= 1100 $.F. 
if/;.;. 

FAMILY I 
HOUSING 

THREE BEDROOM I I 
TOWNHOUSE PLANS os.-0s-201e 

WINSTON COMMONS 
. 69 DOUGLAS STREET 

PONTIAC, Ml 4B342 

I 
I 
I 

A2.2 



S """ PCI DESIGN GROUP, INC, I 
0 "' 0 u P 500 SOUTH FRONT STREET SUITE 975 

COLUMBUS, OHIO 43215 1 
-""'"°"'"'".,_,_,,..,...,_,_, 

1.,. ;;>-'!-'- U" _ _I., 
~ r ~ .., 

. . p!~FQ -~: STO I' 

12.'Xft' I 18SF 

• ~ -------------- ~- ______ J II 

I D "" 1 ,-',,<,::-----, XI _✓,,, _ 
: BEDR}OM#2 ~ " ~~- - 1 1 

I 19SF ~ , '1'1--'I 
I 13'1 '"X10' --- -- -- - 1 o 
I 11'-.,.i..~--~ .,,,,--~ I /!':: I I ,, I I c") 

: LJ / A J_ ~~ -- :i --~I r- J I b 

i N ~JII ! "" KUS ! o) 

) I _ _ 

i) : , , , : , ~~-,- I 
j : .,. I-
f) I I - 0 , . f-r-f--H 
-!'> I """' 1-L 

I I 

i CI l\j' I ' 

I lt-\,.l,i,¥h~I --~~~- ,, 

l 1!Ei,=,1~~(!)B$/ T:f . I • • cs, 

~ Llt~x;1:;.1~ "~7L • • :-------- -- - ~. 
Ii;;-L I- ...J ~ 

i, 191-41i 1..,. 14r-31i 1.,. 
, . , 

FAMILY 
HOUSING 

TWO BEDROOM ACCESSIBLE UNIT 
SCALEf,i- • 1'•0-

GROSS AREA"' 1002 S,F. • NET AREA"' 950 S.F, 

-.-;;or;·......,-

TWO BEDROOM I I 
ACCESSISlE UNIT PLAN 09--06-2018 

WINSTON COMMONS 
59 DOUGLAS STREET 

PONTIAC, Ml 48342 

r,;;..-.,·n,.;; 

A2.3 



"'"''~'"""""'"· 
~Q,~l)G!l 

~~G/1.01.fl' 

PCI DESIGN GROUP, INC. 

""-'"'"'"''"""""""" ............ ~--500 SOUTH FRONT STREET SUITE 975 
COLUMBUS, OHl043215 

I, 4Q1-Q11 

~ 
'I -

l, , 

18SF _ - ' l'v p~:~o ·1~ -------17 
STO 12'X6' ~ - Fffi~~=======--rl L - - - - - l]efjjf 

j~ 
-7'-

! ~ea,,,,nu~ I I 

~I [ 

I 

l _____ "l[Oil I II I " 

,1 

~1111~,, •BEDR OM#1 I 
1 9SF I 

~ 14'10'X11"8M 

1'H-i-t:r.'l-'111I • I 

\.fHB~~I I 
_J 

_'-, 

_I I 
f=ir"ll I 

.:,,_'-..Jj 

16" ..L L \ 
..l. 

I 'f 
I ~ 

iFl] I 
-'I.-

"' 

L Ii J1: 
~ 

) 
~WV \J ~ 

I 

' ii) 
127 SF 1 SF 

' Q 12'9" 10' 13' 'X10' 

ZI 1------7 

BEDR M#3D DBEDR OM#2 \ 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I ' ' 

,f 

FAMILY 
HOUSING 

I 

4------------:J-.J 
141-8 11 v 251-4 11 

'I 
THREE BEDROOM ACCESSIBLE UNIT 

SCALE,\-•= 1•..o• 
GROSS AREA;:; 1155 S.F.-NET AREA.:: 1100 S.F. -~·~ 

THREE BEDROOM I I 
. ACCESSIBLE UNIT PLAN 0>-06-2018 

WINSTON COMMONS 
69 DOUGLAS STREET 

PONTIAC, Ml 48342 

I, , 

' ' 

.... ,,,,;;;;-
A2.4 





Income and Rent Limits 

New legislation was recently passed increasing the income and rent restrictions for affordable housing 

properties. Income limits are measured by the Area Median Income (AMI) by county. The following 

chart demonstrates income limits for 40% AMI, 60% AMI, a.nd 80% AMI and number of persons in the 

family. 

1 Person 8 
2 Person ~ 
3 Person ~ 
4 Person ill 
6 Person 1h11 . 
6 Person ~ 

Examples: 

1.) 80% AMI: 

a. A single person with no kids can make up to $39,760 and live at our property 

b. A family of three (mom, dad, and one child) can make up to $45,440 

c. A family of four (mom, dad, and two children) can make up to $56,720 and live at our 

property 

2.) 60%AMI: 

a. A single person with no kids can make up to $29,820 and live at our property 

b. A family of three (mom, dad, and one child) can make up to $38,340 and live at our 

property. 
c. A family of four (mom, dad, and two children) can make up to $42,540 and live at our 

property 

3.) 40%AMI: 

a. A single person with no kids can make up to $19,880 and live at our property 

b. A family of three (mom, dad, and one child) can make up to $25,560 and live at our 

property. 

c. A family of four (mom, dad, and two children) can make up to $28,360 and live at our 

property 



Similar to the Income Limits, Rent Limits are also measured by Area Median Income (AMI). The following 

chart demonstrates the rent we can charge at the property broken down by 40% AMI, 60% AMI, and 

80% AMI and bedroom type. 

Examples: 

2 Bedrooms (3.0) 

3 Bedrooms (4.5) 

1.) 1 Bedrooms 

a. 80% AMI: We cannot charge more than $1,155 per month 

b. 60% AMI: We cannot charge mare than $866 per month 

c. 40% AMI: We cannot charge more than $577 per month 

2.) 2 Bedrooms 

a. 80% AMI: We cannot charge more than $1,386 per month 

b. 60% AMI: We cannot charge mare than $1,039 per month 

c. 40% AMI: We cannot charge more than $693 per month· 

3.) 3 Bedrooms 

a. 80% AMI: We cannot charge more than $1,602 per month 

b. 60% AMI: We cannot charge more than $1,201 per month 

c. 40% AMI: We cannot charge more than $801 per month 



Average Salary by Job Type in the State of Michigan 

Info provided by https:ljwww.bls.gov/oes/current/oes mi.htm 

1.) Host and Hostesses: $20,790 
2.) Pharmacy Aides: $25,170 
3.) Barbers: $26,270 
4.) Security Guards: $27,230 
5.) Medical Assistants: $31,270 
6.) Bus Drivers: $34,270 
7.) Dental Assistants: $36,480 
8.) Police, Fire, and Ambulance Dispatchers: $41,470 
9.) Clergy: $42,070 
10.) Surveying and Mapping Technicians: $42,280 
11.)Medical Appliance Technicians: $43,370 
12.)Legal Secretaries: $44,540 
13.)Firefighters: $44,870 
14.)Postal Service Mail Carriers: $49,530 
15.)Correctional Officers: $49,910 
16.)Medical Equipment Repairers: $52,950 
17.)Health Educators: $53,790 
18,)Construction and Building Inspectors: $54;290 
19.)Healthcare Social Worker: $56,500 



CITY OF PONTIAC 
Department of Building Safety & Planning 

Mayor Deirdre Waterman 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

Honorable Mayor, Council President, and City Council 

Arthur F. Mullen, AICP - Interim City Planner 
Through the Office of Deputy Mayor - Jane Bais-DISessa 

ZMA 18-06 Zoning Map Amendment Request - REVISED 
1000 Vanguard Drive - PIN 64-14-19-351-024 

-~;.., 
C.) 
;;:_ 

JC'' 
C) 
c.: 
_,, 
0o•-( 

-< 
n 
r 
rn 
;;o 
;:,: 

MUD Mixed Use Development District to M-1 Light Manufacturing 
District 

DATE: June 27, 2018 

Analysis of Petition 

~ = = 
(/) 
rn 
-0 

I 
..J 

-0 
::i:: -.. 
Ul 
.i:-

The City has received a request from Butzel Long, PC on behalf of the Setzer Properties/Pontiac 
Community Investment to rezone approximately 50 acres of land located at the eastern end of Vanguard 
Drive (part of the site of the former Eastern Michigan Asylum) from MUD Mixed Use District to M-1 Light 
Manufacturing District. According to the completed Application for Zoning Map Amendment, the 
developer proposes to construct an 82,700 square foot freight terminal with an additional approximately 
27,000 square foot addition in phase two. 

The applicant's proposed use is determined to be a Term Ina I/Freight Principal Permitted Use, and this 
type of use is permissible in an M-1 Light Manufacturing District as-a-right. If the zoning map amendment 
is approved, the applicant will be required to complete a full site plan review per Section 6.204 to obtain 
preliminary site plan review approval. 

The subject site is designated as the Civic Future Land Use Category. This site was rezoned in 2000 after 
the demolition of the Eastern Michigan Asylum with this Civic land use category included in the 
subsequent Master Plan land use amendment in 2008. The Civic use was envisioned for expansion of the 
Oakland County municipal campus. Oakland County has sufficient space on its campus for expansion so 
the subject site's use of the MUD district is not necessary for expansion of Civic uses. In addition, the 
subject site's non-central location would not be conducive to other Civic land uses either. 

Per the lack of development interest over the last nearly 20 years for the site and with the goals of the 
Master Plan to take advantage of Pontiac's central location and focus on job creation efforts, this request 
complies with the 2014 Master Plan general vision and goals. 

I 

;::o 
,11 
0 
C:J 
..::: 
rn 
0 



The subject site and abutting property to the south and west are zoned MUD Mixed Use District which 
were part of the former Eastern Michigan Asylum property. The Oakland County complex to the 
northwest is zoned GOT Government Office Technological District. The railroad yard abutting the parcel 
to the northeast is zoned M-1 Light Manufacturing District. 

In the MUD requirements found in Sec. 3.704.D, it does permit light industrial uses that shall not exceed 
45% of the district's area. The subject site is only approximately 23% of the entire district's area, ensuring 
compliance with the intent and the size and placement requirements found within this section for the 
former Eastern Michigan Asylum site, and the rezoning complies with these goals. 

Per the review requirements found in Sec. 6.804 of the Zoning Ordinance, the Planning Commission found 
compliance with the review requirements and recommends that the applicant's rezoning request be 
approved for the subject site. 

The error Identifying the parcel with a previous Parcel ID has been corrected; the applicant provided this 
dated information on their application. The correct PIN is 64-14-19-351-024. 

2 



ZMA 18-06 - Zoning Map Amendment 
Address: 1000 Vanguard Drive 
Parcel: 64-14-19-351-024 

Resolution 

Whereas, The City has received an application for a Zoning Map Amendment for Parcel ID Number 
64-14-19-351-024, also known as 1000 Vanguard Drive, from 8utzel Long, PC for Setzer 
Properties/Pontiac Community Investment, LLC, and the applicant's petition is for the rezoning of 
the aforementioned parcel; and 

Whereas, The Planning Division has reviewed the applicant's rezoning request in regards to the 
City's Master Plan and the request conforms to the goals and vision contained within the plan; and 

Whereas, The Planning Division has reviewed the applicant's rezoning request and the 
requirements set forth by Section 6.804 of the Zoning Ordinance, and the Planning Division has 
determined the aforementioned request and proposed intended use of the property complies with 
the City of Pontiac Zoning Ordinance; and 

Whereas, In accordance with the procedures outlined in the Zoning Ordinance, Sections 6.802 as it 
relates to Zoning Map Amendments, the request has undergone the required: Technical Review, 
Public Hearing, and Planning Commission Recommendation; and 

Whereas, On June 6, 2018, a Public Hearing was held, and in consideration of public opinion, the 
Planning Commission recommends City Council approve the Zoning Map Amendment request for 
PIN 64-14-19-351-024, approving the change from the current MUD Mixed Use District zoning to 
M-1 Light Manufacturing District; and 

Now Therefore, Be ft Resolved, That the City Council for the City of Pontiac approve the Planning 
Commission recommendation for the Zoning Map Amendment (ZMA 18-06) request for PIN 64-
14-19-351-024, to amend the current zoning from MUD Mixed Use District zoning to M-1 Light 
Manufacturing District. 

3 



PIN 64-14-19-351-024 

4 


	ADP9CB0.tmp
	Pontiac City Council
	FORMAL MEETING




